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FINANCIAL	MANAGEMENT	REPORT	TO	THE	ACCOUNTING	OFFICER	
ON	THE	AUDIT	OF	THE	MFOLOZI	MUNICIPALITY	FOR	THE	YEAR	
ENDED	30	JUNE	2013.

1. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, to express a conclusion on the annual performance report in 
the management report and to report on material findings relating to compliance with specific requirements in key applicable laws and 
regulations as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No.25 of 2004). Our engagement letter sets 
out our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the accounting officer in detail.

2. This management report includes audit findings arising from the audit of the financial statements, reporting on predetermined 
objectives and compliance with laws and regulations for the year ended 30 June 2013 which were communicated to management and 
includes their response to these findings. The report also includes information on the internal control deficiencies that were identified as 
the root causes for the matters reported. Addressing these deficiencies will assist in ensuring an improvement in the audit outcomes. 

3. The management report consists of an executive summary and detailed audit finding which are contained in the following:
Annexures A, B and C and financial health ratio and trends included in Annexure D.

Introduction
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MEETINGS	wITH	OvERSIGHT	bODIES	AND	THOSE
CHARGED	wITH	GOvERNANCE.

4. During the audit cycle we met with key stakeholders to communicate matters relating to the audit outcomes of the municipality and 
emerging risks. Insight was provided on the drivers of the controls that impact these audit outcomes to enable corrective action to be taken.

5. Meetings were conducted as follows:

Mayor
12 March 2013   |   8 August 2013   |   31 October 2013

Accounting officer
12 March 2013   |   8 August 2013   |   7 October 2013

Audit committee
23 May 2013   |   28 June 2013

6. At these meetings commitments were made to address improvements in the internal control environment with the objective of
achieving a clean audit outcome. The commitments given and the progress made on previous commitments are included under
Section 2, Part F – Status of implementation of commitments and recommendations. 

ExECUTIvE	SUMMURYSection 1
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MATTERS	RELATING	TO	THE	AUDITOR’S	REPORT

PART	A	  |   MISSTATEMENTS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

7.  Material misstatements in the financial statements were identified during the audit. These misstatements were not prevented or 
detected by the municipality’s system of internal control. These material misstatements also constitute non-compliance with the
section 122 of the MFMA.

Material misstatements
Impact (R)

Current year 
Impact (R)
Prior yearFinancial statement 

item Findings Occurred in prior year 
Yes / No

Material misstatements not corrected
None

Material misstatements corrected

Trade and other  
receivable from
non-exchange

Bad debts recovered 377 888 Yes No
Provision for bad debts 377 888 Yes No 

Other debtors 194 051 Yes No 

Debtors payment in 
advance 377 888 Yes No 
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PART	b   |   MATTERS TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE USERS 

PART	C   |   CONCLUSION ON THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT  

The following additional matter paragraph will be included in our auditor’s report to draw the user’s attention to matters regarding the 
audit, the auditor’s responsibilities and the auditor’s report.

Emphasis of matter paragraphs 
The following emphasis of matter 
paragraphs will be included in our auditor’s 
report to draw the user’s attention to 
matters presented or disclosed in the 
financial statement.

Irregular expenditure 
8. The municipality incurred irregular 
expenditure of R26 70 million as disclosed 
in note 25 to the financial statements as 
the SCM processes were not followed. 
Unauthorised expenditure.

9. The municipality incurred unauthorised 
expenditure of R11 22 million as disclosed 
in note 26 to the financial statements as 

Introduction 
13. I have audited the annual performance 
report of the Mfolozi Municipality for the 
year ended 30 June 2013, as set out on 
pages… to…

The accounting officer’s responsibilities 
14. The accounting officer is responsible 
for the preparation and fair representation 
of the annual performance report 
in accordance with the identified 
performance management and reporting 
framework, as defined in paragraph 6 of 
general notice issued in terms of the PAA, 
regarding the planning, management, 
monitoring and reporting of performance 
against  predetermined objectives and 
for such internal control as management 
determines necessary to enable the 
preparation of the annual performance that 

the unspent conditional grants were not 
supported by adequate cash.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

10. The municipality incurred fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure of R1 05 million as a 
result of interest and once penalty charges 
levied on late accounts identified during 
the audit as disclosed in note 27.
Going concern.

11. Note 24 to the financial statement 
indicates that Mfolozi Municipality’s current 
liabilities exceeded its current assets by 
R21 45 million. This condition indicates 
the existence of a material uncertainty 
that may cast significant doubt on the 

is useful and reliable.

The Auditor-general’s responsibilities 
15. As required by sections 4 and 20 of the 
PAA, read with the general notice issued 
in terms thereof my responsibility is to 
prepare an audit conclusion on the annual 
performance report.

16. I conducted my audit in accordance 
with the international Standards on 
Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000: 
Assurance engagements other than audits 
or reviews of historical information. 
I will report on whether I have received all 
the information and explanations required 
to conduct the engagement or if I become 
aware of additional information, the 
omission of which may result in the annual 
performance report being materially 

municipality’s ability to operate as a going 
concern.

Additional matter paragraph 
The following additional matter paragraph 
will be included in our auditor’s report 
to draw the user’s attention to matters 
regarding the audit, the auditor’s 
responsibilities and the auditor’s report. 

Unaudited supplementary schedules 
12. The supplementary information set out 
on page XX to XX does not form part of the 
financial statements and is presented as 
additional information. I have not audited 
this schedule and accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion thereon.

misstated or misleading.

17. I provide reasonable assurance with 
respect to the usefulness of the information 
contained in the annual performance 
report.

I further provide reasonable assurance 
with respect to the reliability of the 
following of the following selected material 
development priorities as set out in the 
annual performance report:
• Service Delivery 

18. The reported performance against 
predetermined objectives was evaluated 
against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability as required by the identified 
performance management and reporting 
framework.
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19. The usefulness of information in the 
annual performance report relates to 
whether it is presented in accordance with 
the requirements of the relevant reporting 
frameworks and whether the reported 
performance is consistent with the planned 
development priorities. The usefulness 
of information further relates to whether 
indicators and targets are measurable 
(i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, 
measurable and time bound) and relevant 
as required.

20. The reliability of the information is 
respect of the selected development 
priorities is assessed to determine whether 
it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether 
it is valid, accurate and complete).

21. The audit involves performing 
procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the usefulness of the annual 
performance report and reliability of 
the selected development priorities 
as set out in the annual performance 
report. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including our assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the annual 
performance report. Because of the 
test nature and other inherent limitations 
of an audit, together with the inherent 
limitations of internal control, there is an 
unavoidable risk that some, even material, 
misstatements may not be detected, even 
though the audit is properly planned and 
performed in accordance with the ISAE 
3000. The procedures performed include 
the following:

• Understanding and testing the internal 
policies, procedures and controls relating 

to the management of and reporting on 
performance information;

• Evaluating and testing the processes, 
system, controls and review of 
documentation maintained at the audited 
institution to support the generation, 
collation, aggregation, monitoring and 
reporting of the performance indicators 
and targets; 

• Evaluating, testing and confirmation of 
the usefulness of planned and reported 
performance in accordance with the 
identified performance management and 
reporting framework;

• Conducting detailed audit testing and 
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence to verify the reliability (validity, 
accuracy and completeness) of reported 
performance information.

22. I believe that the evidence obtained 
from the work performed provides an 
appropriate basis for the reasonable 
assurance conclusions expressed below. 

Disclaimer conclusion 
23. Because of the significance of 
the matters described in the basis for 
disclaimer conclusion paragraphs. I 
have not been able to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to provide a 
basis for conclusion. Accordingly, I do not 
express a conclusion on the usefulness of 
the annual performance report. 

Presentation 
Basis for disclaimer conclusion 
24. Section 46 of the Municipal Systems 
Act requires disclosure in the annual 

performance report of measures taken 
to improve performance where planned 
targets were not achieved. Adequate and 
reliable corroborating evidence could 
not be provided for all measures taken 
to improve performance as disclosed 
in the annual performance report. The 
municipality records did not permit the 
application of alternative audit procedures. 
Consequently, I did not obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy 
myself as to the reliability of the measures 
taken to improve performance. 

Reliability 
Basis for disclaimer conclusion
25. The National Treasury Framework 
for managing programme performance 
information ((FMPP) requires that 
institutions should have appropriate 
systems to collect, collate, verify and store 
performance information to ensure valid, 
accurate and complete reporting of actual 
achievements against planned objectives, 
indicators and targets.

I was unable to obtain the information 
and explanations and explanations I 
considered necessary to satisfy myself as 
to the reliability of information presented 
with respect to basic service delivery.

This was due to limitations placed on the 
scope of my work due to the fact that the 
municipality could not provide sufficient 
appropriate evidence in support of the 
information presented with respect to the 
basic service delivery.
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PART	D   |   FINDINGS ON COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS

Included below are material findings of non-compliance with specific requirements in key applicable laws and regulations.

Annual financial statement 
26. The financial statements submitted 
for auditing were not prepared in all 
material respects in accordance with 
the requirements of section 122 of the 
Municipal Finance Management Act. 
Material misstatements of accumulated 
depreciation, property, plant and 
equipment, trade and other payables, 
irregular expenditure, unauthorised 
expenditure, unspent conditional grants, 
Finance cost, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure and commitments identified 
by the auditors in the statements receiving 
an unqualified audit opinion. 

Audit committees 
27. The audit committee did not advise
the council on matters relating to the
adequate, reliability and accuracy of 
financial reporting and information as 
required by section 166(2)(a)(iv) of the 
MFMA.

Procurement and contract management 
28. Goods and services with a transaction 
value below R200 000 were procured 
without obtaining the required price 
quotations from at least three different 
prospective providers as per the 
requirements of SCM regulation 17(a) & (c).

29. Contracts and quotations were 
awarded to suppliers whose tax matters 
had not been declared as required by 
Supply Chain Regulations 13(b).

30. The preference point system was not 
applied in all procurement of goods and 
services above R30 000 as required by 
section 28(1)(a).

Expenditure Management 
31. The accounting office did not take 
reasonable steps to prevent irregular 
expenditure and fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure, as required by
section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA.

PART	E   |   INTERNAL CONTROL 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE DRIVERS OF 
INTERNAL CONTROL
32. The implementation of effective 
internal control helps in the achievement 
of important objectives and sustained and 
improved performance. Objectives are 
derived from the regulatory environment 
and fall into the following category:

• Operations – Effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations including goals 
for operational and financial performance 
and safeguarding resources against loss 
(financial and performance management)

• Reporting – Pertaining to the reliability 
of reporting including internal and external 
reporting of financial and non-financial 
information.

• Compliance – Pertaining to compliance 
with laws and regulations.

33. Objectives are driven by the 
mandate and the mission and vision of 
the organisation. Setting objectives is a 
prerequisite to internal control and a key 
part of strategic planning.

34. Internal control is a multi-dimensional 
iterates process of ongoing tasks and 
activities affected by the people not 
just policies and systems which provide 
assurance concerning the achievement 
of objectives. The fundamental principles 
contained in the drivers of internal control 
below must be present and operate 
together in order for the system of internal 
control to be effective. 

35. For purposes of focusing corrective 
action, the principles of the different 
components of internal control have been 
categorised under leadership, finance 
and performance management and 
governance. These are the drivers of 
internal control. 

36. The leadership of an organisation 
sets the tone from the top regarding 
the importance of internal control and 
expected standards of conduct. This 
establishes the control environment which 
is the foundation for the other components 
of internal control and provides discipline, 
process and structure. In order to establish 
what control activities (e.g. policies 
and procedures) are required to ensure 
achievement of the control objectives a 
risk assessment should be conducted. 
The availability of accurate and complete 
information and the communication of 
information, another component of internal 
control, are required to carry out the day-
to-day internal control activities. Thereafter 
there should be ongoing monitoring of 
activities (good governance) to ascertain 
whether all components of internal control 
are present and functioning. 
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37. When internal control is effective, 
management and those charged with 
governance have reasonable assurance 
that operations are managed effectively 
and efficiently, financial and non-financial 
reporting is reliable and laws and 
regulations are complied with.

When the required preventative or detective controls are in place, it is assessed with a

When progress on the implementation of such controls were made but improvement is still
required or where the actions taken are not or have not been sustainable, it is assessed with a

When internal controls are not in place and intervention is required
to design and implement appropriate controls, it is assessed with a

The movement in the status of the drivers from previous year-end to the current year-end to the current year-end assessment is indicated, 
collectively for each of the three audit dimensions under the three fundamentals of internal control, with the following:

  Improved
  Unchanged
  Regressed

The status of the commitments made by management is reported in part F.

38. Below is our assessment of the 
implementation of the drivers of internal 
control based on significant deficiencies 
identified during our audit of the financial 
statements, the annual performance report 
and compliance with laws and regulations. 
Significant deficiencies occur when 
internal controls either do not exist or are 

not appropriately designed to address 
the risk or are not implemented and which 
either had or should cause the financial 
statements or the annual performance 
report to be materially misstated and 
material non-compliance with laws and 
regulations to occur.
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                                                                The audit dimensions
Fundamentals of internal control Financial Performance 

objectives
Compliance with laws 

and regulations

Leadership Current 
Year

Prior
Year

Current 
Year 

Prior
Year

Current 
Year 

Prior
Year

Overall movement from previous assessment

Provide effective leadership based on a culture of honesty, 
ethical business practices and good governance, protecting 
and enhancing the best interests of the entity

Exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial
and performance reporting and compliance
and related internal control

Implement effective HR management to ensure that adequate 
and sufficiently skilled resources are in place and that 
performance is monitored

Establish and communicate policies and procedures to enable 
and support understanding and execution of internal control 
objectives, processes and responsibilities

Develop and monitor the implementation of action plans to 
address internal control deficiencies

Establish an IT governance framework that supports and 
enables the business, delivers value and improves performance

Financial and performance management Current 
Year

Prior
Year

Current 
Year 

Prior
Year 

Current 
Year 

Prior
Year 

Overall movement from previous assessment

Implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure 
that complete, relevant and accurate information is accessible 
and available to support financial and performance  reporting 

Implement controls over daily and monthly processing
and reconciling of transactions

Prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and 
performance reports that are supported and evidence
by reliable information

Review and monitor compliance with applicable laws
and regulations

Design and implement formal controls over IT systems to
ensure the reliability of the systems and the availability, 
accuracy and protection of information

Governance Current 
Year

Prior
Year

Current 
Year 

Prior
Year 

Current 
Year 

Prior
Year 

Overall movement from previous assessment

Implement appropriate risk management activities to ensure 
that regular risk assessments, including consideration of IT risks 
and fraud prevention, are conducted and that a risk strategy to 
address the risks is developed and monitored

Ensure that there is an adequate resourced and functioning 
internal audit unit that identifies internal control deficiencies and 
recommends corrective action effectively

Ensure that the audit committee promotes accountability and 
service delivery through evaluating and monitoring responses 
to risks and providing oversight over the effectiveness of the 
internal control environment including financial and performance 
reporting and compliance with laws and regulations
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LEADERSHIP 
Effective leadership
39. All section 57 employees are newly 
appointed and are still in the process 
of adjusting and developing at the 
municipality resulting in weak internal 
controls. 

Establishment of an IT governance 
framework 
40. The municipality has an inadequate 
IT governance framework due to lack of 
appropriate skills to develop a framework. 
Furthermore, the municipality has placed 
over reliance on the service provider for 
IT operations and management of the IT 
infrastructure. 

Oversight responsibility 
41. The accounting officer does not review 
the financial statements prior to their 
submission for audit.

42. The municipality did not have sufficient 
monitoring controls to ensure adherence to 
the internal policies and procedures.

43. Inadequate oversight over the 
annual performance reporting, financial 
statements and compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

Human resource management 
44. The accounting officer did not exercise 
ongoing supervision and monitoring of 
compliance with prescripts of overtime and 
leave policies. 

Policies and procedures 
45. The accounting officer did not 
monitor the implementation of policies 
and procedures, resulting in numerous 
instances of non-compliance with 
the MFMA and SCM. In addition, the 
accounting officer did not take corrective 
action and introduce procedures to 
prevent and detect irregular expenditure, 
unauthorised expenditure, fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure. 

FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT 

Record management
46. The municipality did not have 
documented procedures to guide 
the process of collection, recording, 
processing, monitoring and reporting for 
the selected performance information. 

Daily and monthly processing and 
reconciling of transactions 
47. Management did not design daily 
and monthly controls to mitigate the risks 
relating to financial and performance 
reporting.

Regular, accurate and complete 
financial and performance reports 
48. The municipal manager did not 
perform a detailed review of the 
quarterly performance reports and 
annual performance reports prior to their 
submission for audit and thus these errors 
were not identified and corrected. 

Compliance Monitoring 
49. Policies and procedures were not 
designed in a manner to prevent, detect 
and address risks that impact compliance 
with the Municipal SCM regulations 44.

50. The municipality did not have sufficient 
monitoring controls to ensure that it 
adheres to the section 41 (c) of the MFMA 
and take corrective action in time to 
prevent non-compliance with legislation.  

Formal control over IT systems  
51. An individual that was assigned 
responsibility to develop policies 
including IT governance framework left 
the municipality before documenting or 
finalising policies. 

52. Currently the municipality does not 
have an IT Manager. The IT section is 
outsourced to the service provider. The 
employee from the service provider who 

is an engineer a technical person was 
assigned the responsibility to develop 
policies. 

53. Management did not see the need 
to review performance reports because 
the municipality has an SLA with the 
service provider. Moreover management 
did not fully understand the objectives 
of performing this review and did not 
understand the associated risks. 

54. Management did not see the need to 
develop an action plan because they did 
not understand management did not fully 
understand the objectives of developing 
and continuously maintaining an action 
plan. Management did not understand the 
associated risks.

55. Management did not see the need to 
have a signed license agreement because 
the Payday application is a packaged 
system. Management did not fully 
understand the associated risks. 

56. Management did not fully understand 
the risks of having an outdated service 
level agreement. 

57. Appropriate key controls not 
implemented as there is lack of 
formalisation of IT policies and procedures 
resulting in a lack of an IT management 
platform to discuss operational and 
strategic objectives of IT.

58. The responsibility to develop IT 
Policies was left with the technical 
person employed by the service provider. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks. 

59. This was attributed by lack of 
documented and approved user 
account management procedure/policy. 
Moreover the responsibility to develop 
IT Policies was left with the technical 
person employed by the service provider. 

11



Management did not fully understand risks 
associated with access violations.

60. This was attributed by lack of 
documented and approved user account 
management procedure/policy. Moreover 
the importance of internal controls 
was relaxed because of trust among 
employees. Management did not fully 
understand the associated risks.

61. The responsibility to register new 
users and reset passwords was left with 
the service provider of the application. 
Users that had administrator rights to the 
application did not know how to utilise 
administrator functions. Management did 
not fully understand the associated risks 
and cost involved. 

62. This was attributed by lack of 
awareness and knowledge to ensure that, 
processes need to be documented and 
approved to be able to enforce consistent 
implementation. The importance of internal 
controls were relaxed due to trust among 
employees of the HR department.

63. This was attributed by lack of 
documented and approved user 
account management procedure/policy. 
Management did not understand the risk 
associate with user access controls. 

64. The responsibility to develop IT 
policies was left with the technical 
person employed by the service provider. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks. 

65. Lack of backup plan when systems 
are being serviced by external service 
providers. Management did not fully 
understand the associated risks. 

66. Management does not understand 
the importance of having proper physical 
security and environmental controls. 
Management did prioritise the importance 
of having an effective DRP and BCP.

GOVERNANCE 

Audit committee
67. The audit committee did not provide 
oversight over the effectiveness of the 
internal control environment including 
financial performance auditing and 
compliance with laws and regulations. 

PART	F   |   STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF COMMITMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

68. Below is our assessment of the progress on commitments made by senior management, the accounting officer and audit committee to 
address audit in the prior and current years. 

69. Eighteen audit recommendations accepted by management in the prior year regarding matters including in the auditor’s report and 
other important matters, two were implemented or alternative actions were taken which resolved the prior year audit findings. Sixteen 
recommendations are still in the process of being implemented and very limited progress has been made. Detail on the status of these 
recommendations is provided in the summary of detailed findings in this report (section 8). 

No Commitment Made by Date Status 

1 Fill vacant municipal manager post Mayor 12 March 2013 Resolved 

2 Fill section 57 vacancies Mayor 12 March 2013 Resolved 

3 Improve cash flow Mayor 12 March 2013 In progress

4 Management of SCM process Mayor 12 March 2013 In progress

5 Reduce creditors Mayor 12 March 2013 In progress

6 Fill vacant finance department posts Mayor 12 March 2013 In progress

PART	G   |   INVESTIGATION IN PROGRESS

70. One instance of fraud has been reported to the South African Police Services
and the municipality needs to finalise the investigation of this issue. 
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PART	A   |   PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

71. The audit included an assessment of procurement processes, contract management and the related controls in place. To ensure a 
fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost-effective SCM system, the processes and controls need to comply with legislation and 
minimise the likelihood of fraud, corruption, favouritism as well as unfair and irregular practices. A summary of the findings from the audit 
are as follows:

Awards to persons in the service of the state
72. SCM Regulation 44 prohibits awards to persons or to entities owned/managed by them if they are in service of the auditee
(i.e. employees and councilors) or if they are in service of any other state institution. The audit included the identification of such 
prohibited awards. Further testing was also performed to determine whether the legislated requirements with regard to declarations of 
interest were adhered to. 

73. The findings were as follows:

Internal control deficiencies
74. Management did not monitor the implementation of policies and procedures of the municipality, resulting in numerous instances of 
non-compliance with the MFMA, as detailed under the ‘reporting on compliance with laws and regulations section’ of this report.

SPECIFIC	FOCUS	AREAS

Finding
Number 

and value of 
awards made

Number of 
officials/

councilors

Number of 
providers

Further non-compliance or irregularities regarding the awards

Provider did 
not submit 

declarations of 
interest

Provider did 
not declare 

interest 
(declaration 
submitted) 

Officials/
councilors did 

not declare 
interest 

Official/
councilors was 
involved in the 
procurement of 

the award

Awards to 
officials of the 
municipality 

1
R655,630.01

1 1 1 1 1 0

13



PART	C   |   FINANCIAL INDICATORS

82. Management is responsible for the sound and sustainable management of the affairs of the municipality and for implementing an 
efficient, effective and transparent financial management system for this purpose, as regulated by the MFMA.

83. Our audit included a high-level assessment of selected financial indicators as year-end. The purpose of assessment is to provide 
management with an overview of financial indicators to enable timely remedial action where financial health and service delivery may be 
at risk. The information should be used to complement rather than be a substitute for management’s own financial assessment.

84. The entity’s financial indicators have been assessed according to the following areas and are set out in the table below:
• Budgets
• Expenditure management 
• Revenue management 
• Asset and liability management 
• Conditional grants

85. The analyses on which the information in the table is based are contained in annexure D. the table is followed by overall high-level 
comments on the risks posed by the assessment of the financial indicators.

PART	b   |   SERVICE DELIVERY MATTERS  

The audit included an assessment of specific service delivery aspects relevant to the municipality. For the financial year under review 
focus was placed on the following:

Roads infrastructure
75. Approved policies and procedures in place specific to road infrastructure.

76. An approved road maintenance plan (strategy) in place that addresses the:

• Allowance for the rectification of existing defects;
• Description of the work to be carried out; and
• Forecast of the necessary maintenance (preventative, routine and repairs)
• Addressing backlogs
• Maintenance expenditure for the planning period 

77. An approved plan in place to eradicate existing backlogs (including new roads/upgrading/rehabilitation and maintenance backlogs) 
which details at least the extent of backlog, timeline/s for completion, costing to clear backlog, and processes for monitoring, reporting 
and corrective action).

78. An approved organisational structure/organogram for the road infrastructure unit/technical services department.

79. Evidence whether the municipality budgeted (out of own funds) for all planned road maintenance in its operational budget.

80. Evidence of the municipality spending in accordance with the allocation statement received from 
National CoGTA (MIG formula – New roads).

81. Evidence whether a road asset management system is in place.
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Not	  over-‐spent	   %	  over-‐spent	   Limitation Not	  over-‐spent	   %	  over-‐spent	   Limitation

102.4% 3%

Not	  under-‐spent	   %	  under-‐spent	   Limitation Not	  under-‐spent	   %	  under-‐spent	   Limitation

77.3% 14%

Not	  under-‐spent	   %	  under-‐spent Limitation Not	  under-‐spent	   %	  under-‐spent	   Limitation
52.9% 28.67%

Limitation Limitation

Limitation Limitation

Limitation Limitation

Limitation Limitation

Limitation Limitation
4.4

Debtors	  impairment	  provison	  as	  a	  
percentage	  of	  revenue	  from	  goods	  
and	  services	  rendered	  on	  credit	  

%	  debtors	  impaired	  to	  revenue	  from	  goods	  
and	  services	  

1.9%

%	  debtors	  impaired	  to	  revenue	  from	  
goods	  and	  services	  

0

4.2

4.3

4.1

Debtors	  impairment	  provision	  as	  
percentage	  of	  accounts	  receieved	  

%	  debtors	  impaired	  to	  accounts	  receivable	  

21.2%

%	  debtors	  impaired	  to	  accounts	  
receivable	  

Debtor-‐collection	  period	  (before	  
impairment)

Days	  
25

Days	  
113

0

137 78.9
Credit-‐payment	  period	  

REVENUE	  MANAGEMENT	  

Debtor-‐collection	  period	  (before	  
impairment)

Days	  
32

Days	  

Days	   Days	  3.1

251

Percentage	  over-‐spending	  of	  the	  final	  
approved	  operating	  expenditure	  
budget

Percentage	  under-‐spending	  of	  the	  
final	  approved	  capital	  budget	  

GRANT	  MANAGEMENT	  
Percentage	  under-‐spending	  of	  
conditional	  grants	  received	  

EXPENDITURE	  MANAGEMENT	  

1.1

1.2

2.1

FINANCIAL	  INDICATORS

BUDGET	  MANAGEMENT	  

(Limitation	  =	  unable	  to	  obtain	  sufficient	  
appropriate	  information)	   AS	  AT	  30	  JUNE	  2013	   AS	  AT	  30	  JUNE	  2012	  

Limitation Limitation

Limitation Limitation

No Yes	   Limitation No Yes	   Limitation

X X

No Yes	   Limitation No Yes	   Limitation

X X

No Yes Limitation No	   Yes	   Limitation
X X

Limitation Limitation

Limitation Limitation

No Yes	   Limitation No	   Yes	   Limitation
X X

6.2 Net	  cash	  flows	  for	  the	  year	  from	   No	   Yes	   Limitation No	   Yes	   Limitation	  

4.5 Percentage	  water	  losses	  incurred	   %	  water	  losses	  
n/a

%	  water	  losses	  
n/a

FINANCIAL	  INDICATORS
(Limitation	  =	  unable	  to	  obtain	  sufficient	  appropriate	  

information)	  
AS	  AT	  30	  JUNE	  2013	   AS	  AT	  30	  JUNE	  2012	  

BUDGET	  MANAGEMENT	  

5.1
A	  deficit	  for	  the	  year	  was	  realised	  (total	  
expenditure	  	  exceeded	  total	  revenue)

%	  electricity	  losses	  
n/a	  

%	  electricity	  losses	  
n/a

4.6 Percentage	  electricity	  losses	  incurred	  

ASSET	  AND	  LIABILITY	  MANAGEMENT	  

5.3 A	  net	  liability	  position	  was	  realised	  (total	  liabilities	  
exceeded	  total	  assets)

EXPENDITURE	  MANAGEMENT	  

5.2
A	  net	  current	  liability	  position	  was	  realised	  (total	  
current	  liabilities	  exceeded	  total	  current	  assets)

5.4
Percentage	  of	  PPE	  and	  /or	  intangible	  assets	  
impaired

%	  PPE	  and	  intangible	  assets	  impaired %	  PPE	  and	  intangible	  assets	  impaired

47.7% 0

6.1 The	  year-‐end	  bank	  balance	  was	  in	  overdraft	  

5.5
Percentage	  of	  loan	  recievables	  (loans	  awarded)	  
and/or	  investments	  impaired	  

%	  loans	  and	  investments	  impaired	   %	  loans	  and	  investments	  impaired	  

n/a n/a

CASH	  MANAGEMENT	  
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operating	  activities	  were	  negative	   X X

Bank	  in	  overdraft	   Limitation Bank	  in	  overdraft	   Limitation

Bank	  in	  overdraft	   Limitation Bank	  in	  overdraft	   Limitation

Bank	  in	  overdraft	   Not	  
exceeded	  

Limitation Bank	  in	  overdraft	   Not	  exceeded	   %	  
exceeded	  

Limitation

1043,4% Limitation

Negative/no	  cash	  
flows	   Limitation Negative/no	  cash	  flows	   Limitation

Negative/no	  cash	  
flows	  

Limitation Negative/no	  cash	  flows	   Limitation

Negative/no	  cash	  
flows	  

Limitation Negative/no	  cash	  flows	   Limitation

n/a

FINANCIAL	  INDICATORS

(Limitation	  =	  unable	  to	  obtain	  sufficient	  
appropriate	  information)	   AS	  AT	  30	  JUNE	  2012	  

6.3
Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents	  as	  a	  percentage	  
of	  operating	  expenditure	  

AS	  AT	  30	  JUNE	  2013	  

Percentage	  by	  which	  unspent	  conditional	  
grants	  recive

6.4 Creditors	  as	  a	  percentage	  of	  cash	  and	  cash	  
equivalents	  

%	  cash	  to	  operating	  
expenditure	  

1.6%

%	  creditors	  to	  cash
117.44%

%	  cash	  to	  operating	  
expenditure	  

%	  creditors	  to	  cash

1.6%

1078.1%

6.56.556.5

Current	  liabilities	  as	  a	  percentage	  of	  net	  
cash	  flows	  for	  the	  year	  from	  operating	  
activities	  

%	  current	  liabilities	  to	  cash	  
inflows	  

%	  current	  liabilities	  to	  cash	  
inflows	  6.6

	  	  	  -‐275.6% 	  	  	  -‐463.3%

%	  exceeded	  

1330.5%

%	  long-‐term	  debt	  to	  cash	  
inflows	  
	  	  	  -‐281.6%

Long-‐term	  debt	  as	  a	  percentage	  of	  net	  cash	  
inflows	  for	  the	  year	  from	  operating	  
activities	  

%	  long-‐term	  debt	  to	  cash	  
inflows	  

0
6.7

Employee	  benefit	  obligation	  as	  a	  
percentage	  of	  net	  cash	  inflows	  for	  the	  year	  
from	  operating	  activities	  

%	  employee	  benefit	  obligation	  
to	  cash	  flows	  6.8

%	  employee	  benefit	  obligation	  
to	  cash	  flows	  

n/a

86. The cash flow situation at the municipality can be confirmed in the ratios presented above.

PART	D   |   CONSULTANTS

87. The table below summarises the consultancy contracts selected for testing together with an indication of areas were audit findings 
were identified.

Planning	  and	  appointment	  
process	  

Performance	  
management	  &	  
monitoring	  

Transfer	  of	  skills	   Closing	  &	  finalisation	  
Internal	  
controls	  

BOX	  Consultants	  
System	  for	  Monthly	  
close	  out	  of	  
accounts	  

# Unknown	   # # # # #

Minatlou	  Consulting	   Preparation	  of	  
financial	  statement	  

# Unknown	   # # # # #

A	  B	  Projects	   Asset	  Verification	   # Unknown	   # # # # #

Umnotho	  Business	  
Consulting	  

Internal	  Audit	   # Unknown	   # # # # #

Audit	  findings	  area	  

Name	  of	  consultant	   Type	  of	  service	  
Date	  of	  

appointment	   Value	  of	  award	  

( # ) No information on the use of consultants was not provided. As such the following specific focus areas could not be tested:

Planning and appointment processes
• Consultants were appointed without 
a proper needs assessment being 
performed.

• Consultants were appointed even though 
the skills necessary to perform the project, 
duty or study were available within the 
(type of entity).

• Consultants were appointed to perform 
work of a permanent/continuous in nature 
for which [a suitable vacant position exists 
in the establishment and no attempts 
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were made to fill the position / permanent 
capacity is needed and no formal attempts 
were made to create a position in the 
establishment]

• Former employees were appointed as 
consultants immediately after resigning 
from the (type of entity) at remuneration 
packages higher than what they were 
earning as employees.

• Consultants were appointed as rates 
which are significantly higher than 
those proposed in the [DPSA guide on 
hourly rates for consultants I by relevant 
professional bodies in the consultant’s 
industry].

• The (type of entity) procured consultants 
through means other than the transversal
contract while the services were available 
through a transversal contract in which the
(type of entity) participates.

• IT related services classified as 
mandatory were not procured through SITA

• The procurement of did not comply with 
the prescribed procurement processes. 
Refer the section on procurement and 
contract management for specific findings.

• Consultants were appointed without any 
terms of reference that define the task 
directive (methodology), objectives, goals, 

scope of the assignment, time frames 
linked to various tasks and frequency of 
monitoring actions.

• The terms of references used in the 
appointment consultants were inadequate 
as they do not clearly defined the task 
directive (methodology), objectives, goals. 
scope of the assignment, time frames 
linked to various tasks and frequency of 
monitoring actions.

Performance management & monitoring
• Consultancy services were provided and 
payment made to the consultants without a
signed contract to regulate the work of the 
consultant.

• Measures to monitor contract 
performance and delivery were not defined 
and/or implemented.

• Measures applied to monitor consultancy 
projects were insufficient to ensure 
effective contract management.

Transfer of skills
• Requirements for transfer of skills were 
not included in the terms of reference.

• Conditions or clauses relating to transfer 
of skills were not included in the contract.

• No evaluation was performed at the end 
of the consultancy project to determine 

whether skills and knowledge were 
transferred as per the Terms of reference 
and the contract.

Closing and finalisation of projects
• Deliverables delivered by did not match 
those described in the Terms of Reference.

• No evaluation was performed to 
determine if the consultancy project was 
economically concluded and that value 
for money was obtained by comparing the 
consultant’s services rendered and the 
deliverable to the initial project objectives 
and needs.

• Proposals or recommendations that are 
contained in the consultant’s reports were 
not considered or implemented.

Non compliance of the PAA and non 
submission of required information will 
result in a limitation of scope.

Internal control deficiency
Lack of due care in preparation and 
maintenance of the financial data for the 
financial year by the acting municipal 
manager which results in non-compliance.
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Accounting and compliance matters
88. The municipality is heavily reliant on the consultants to prepare the fixed asset register, annual financial statements and other financial 
information.

Accounting and compliance matters
89. The ASB and Municipal competency regulations brought about the following changes to accounting and compliance matters:

• New pronouncements/requirements
a) Additional Standards of GRAP issued by the ASB

• GRAP 18 Segment reporting
• GRAP 20 Related-party disclosures
• GRAP 25 Employee benefits
• GRAP 105 Transfers of functions between entities under common control
• GRAP 106 Transfers of functions between entities not under common control
• GRAP 107 Mergers

The Minister of Finance prescribed an effective date of 1 April 2013 in the Government Gazette for GRAP 25: Employee Benefits. No 
effective date has been set for the remaining standards
listed above.

Subsequent events
90. There we no matters to report on.

EMERGING	RISKS
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92. The matters communicated throughout this report relate to the three fundamentals of internal control which should be addressed to 
achieve sustained clean administration. The AGSA staff remain committed to assisting in the process of identifying and communicating 
good practices to improve governance and accountability, so as to build public confidence in government’s ability to account for public 
resources in a transparent manner.

Yours sincerely

Ntomoifuthi P. Makaye
Senior Manager: KZN 3

29 November 2013

Enquiries:  R Lutchman
Telephone: 033 264 7400
Fax: 033 264 7596
Email: rlutchman@agsa.co.za

91. For the purposes of this report, the detailed audit findings included in annexures A to C have been classified as follows:
Matters to be included in the auditor’s report -These matters should be addressed as a matter of urgency.

Other important matters- These matters should be addressed to prevent the likelihood that these matters may in future lead to material 
misstatements of the financial statements, material findings on predetermined objectives and compliance with laws and regulations.

Administrative matters - These matters are unlikely to result in material misstatements of the financial statements, material findings on 
predetermined objectives and compliance with laws and regulations.

Distribution:
CEO
CFO
Audit committee
Head of internal audit

RATINGS	OF	DETAILED	AUDIT	FINDINGS

CONCLUSION

19



SUMMARY	OF	DETAILED	AUDIT	FINDINGS

Number	  of	  times	  reported	  
in	  previous	  3	  years	  

Status	  of	  implementation	  
of	  previous	  year(s)	  
recommendation	  
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ü ü All	  3	  years	   In	  progress	  
ü ü All	  3	  years	   In	  progress	  

ü ü All	  3	  years	   In	  progress	  
ü ü All	  3	  years	   In	  progress	  

ü ü All	  3	  years	   In	  progress	  

ü ü All	  3	  years	   In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  1 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  1 In	  progress	  

ü Year	  1 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  1 In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  1 In	  progress	  

Predetermined	  objectives	  

Revenue	  

Taxes	  
VAT	  incorrectly	  calculated	  

Three	  quotes	  not	  obtained	  
Preferential	  point	  system	  not	  used	  for	  price	  quotations	  
above	  R30	  000	  and	  below	  R200	  000
No	  tax	  clearance	  certificates	  for	  amounts	  exceeding	  R30	  000

Performance	  information	  not	  provided	  
Performance	  and	  othe	  audit	  information	  not	  provided	  
Use	  of	  consultants	  information	  not	  provided	  
Road	  infrastructure	  information	  not	  provided	  

Incorrect	  billing	  of	  service	  charge	  

Employee	  costs
Non	  compliance	  with	  payments	  to	  be	  made	  to	  SARS
Non	  compliance	  with	  SALBC	  Main	  Collective	  Agreement

Unspent	  conditional	  grants	  not	  supported	  by	  adequate	  cash	  

SECTION	  8:	  SUMMARY	  OF	  DETAILED	  AUDIT	  FINDINGS

Finding	  

Pa
ge
.	  N

o.
	  

Classification	   Rating	  

Operating	  expenditure	  

Number	  of	  times	  reported	  
in	  previous	  3	  years	  

Status	  of	  implementation	  
of	  previous	  year(s)	  
recommendation	  
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ü ü Year	  2
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

Pa
ge

.	  N
o.
	  

Finding	  

Classification	   Rating	  

Information	  technology	  

Payday	  license	  agreement	  not	  signed	  

Inadequate	  network	  user	  account	  management	  procedures	  

Inadequate	  IT	  governance	  framework	  

Lack	  of	  review	  of	  information	  technology	  administrator	  
activities	  
Review	  of	  access	  violations	  on	  the	  network	  

Action	  plan	  to	  address	  it	  risks

Bytes	  service	  level	  agreement	  not	  dated	  
Lack	  of	  an	  information	  technology	  steering	  committee	  
Information	  technology	  policies	  and	  procedures	  not	  
documented	  adequately	  
Lack	  of	  an	  information	  technology	  steering	  committee	  

No	  formalised	  annual	  it	  strategy	  document

Number	  of	  times	  reported	  
in	  previous	  3	  years	  

Status	  of	  implementation	  
of	  previous	  year(s)	  
recommendation	  
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ü ü Year	  2
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  

Pa
ge

.	  N
o.
	  

Finding	  

Classification	   Rating	  

Information	  technology	  

Payday	  license	  agreement	  not	  signed	  

Inadequate	  network	  user	  account	  management	  procedures	  

Inadequate	  IT	  governance	  framework	  

Lack	  of	  review	  of	  information	  technology	  administrator	  
activities	  
Review	  of	  access	  violations	  on	  the	  network	  

Action	  plan	  to	  address	  it	  risks

Bytes	  service	  level	  agreement	  not	  dated	  
Lack	  of	  an	  information	  technology	  steering	  committee	  
Information	  technology	  policies	  and	  procedures	  not	  
documented	  adequately	  
Lack	  of	  an	  information	  technology	  steering	  committee	  

No	  formalised	  annual	  it	  strategy	  document

Number	  of	  times	  reported	  
in	  previous	  3	  years	  

Status	  of	  implementation	  
of	  previous	  year(s)	  
recommendation	  
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ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  
ü ü Year	  2 In	  progress	  Inadequate	  password	  control	  

Pa
ge

.	  N
o.
	  

Finding	  

Classification	   Rating	  

Inadequate	  backup	  procedure
Inadequate	  backup	  procedure
Lack	  of	  documented	  business	  continuity	  plan	  
Inadequate	  disaster	  recovery	  plan	  
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ANNExURE	A   |   MATTERS AFFECTING THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Going Concern

1. Unspent conditional grant not 
supported by adequate cash

Audit finding
In terms of paragraph 15 (1) of Division 
of Revenue Act No.1 of 2010, “Spending 
in terms of purpose and subject to 

Grant money received was not being 
properly managed against projects that 
they were allocated for. There will be a 
lack of service delivery as conditional 
grants have been used to fund operational 
expenditure.

Internal control deficiency
The chief financial officer has not 
implement controls over daily and monthly 
processing of grant expenditure and 
reconciling of transactions in respect of 
conditional grants.

Recommendation
The unspent grants and subsidies balance 
of R11 224 680, needs to be recovered 

conditions.- (1) Despite anything to the 
contrary contained in any law, an allocation 
referred to in Schedule 4,5,6,7 or 8 may 
only be utilised for the purpose stipulated 
in the Schedule concerned and in 
accordance with the framework published 
in terms of section 14’’ During the audit of 
unspent conditional government grants 
and subsidies, as disclosed in note 9, to 

the financial statements, it was noted that 
the municipality had unspent conditional 
grants balance of R11 224 680. This was 
not backed by any investments or cash. 
This highlights that unspent conditional 
grants received were utilized for purposes 
other than those stipulated in the following 
schedule below.

Financial	  statement	   Amount	  (R)

MIG	  Grant	   8	  531	  724	  
Housing	  Grant 33	  795
Beach	  access	  Upgrade	   913	  725
IDP 129	  117
Development	  Planning	  and	  Shared	  Services	   371	  319
Small	  Town	  Rehabilitation	   570	  000
Sport	  and	  Recreation	   675	  000
Total	   11	  224	  680	  

from operations that it was used to fund 
The chief financial officer should devise, 
implement, monitor and review processes 
to ensure that grant expenditure is used for 
intended purposes.

Management response
Management agrees with the finding. The 
following measures have been put in place 
to ensure that this does not happen in 
future;

1. Grants are now kept in a separate
bank account.
2. Cash flow of the municipality is 
monitored on a regular basis
3. And the Chief Financial Officer reports 

on a regular basis to MANGO, Finance 
portfolio and council regarding the state of 
cash flows.

Further, the situation has been adequately 
explained in the annual financial 
statements to ensure compliance with 
GRAP 1.

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
This finding will be included in the 
management report as a going concern 
issue.
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Predetermined objectives

2. Performance information not provided

Audit finding
In terms of section 19(1)(a) of the Public 
Auditors Act (PAA),

An auditee must render all reasonable 
assistance to the Auditor-General or the 
authorised auditor pet1orming the audit to 
enable the Auditor-General or authorised 
auditor to complete the audit within any 
applicable timeframes.

Requested information for the completion 
of the audit of predetermined objectives 
was not provided to us for auditing.

1. Invitation of the community to participate 
in the implementation of lDP.

2. Delegation by Mayor or Council the 
responsibility for managing the drafting of 
lDP to municipal manager.

3. Advert for invitation of community to 
comment on the draft lDP.

4. Public notice of the adoption of the lDP.

5. Evidence of involvement of community in 
setting of key performance indicators and
performance targets.

6. Delegation by Mayor or Council 
the responsibility for managing the 
development of municipality’s PMS.

7. Resolution for adoption of PMS.

8. Process for monitoring and reviewing of 
PMS.

9. Minutes for approval of SDBIP 
2012/2013.

10. Evidence of submission of SDBIP and 
annual budget to the Mayor by Accounting 
Officer.

11. Public notice of the approved annual 
budget.

12. Public notice of the approved SDBIP 
2012/2013.

13. Evidence of submission to National 
Treasury and Provincial Treasury of SDBIP 
2012/2013.

by municipal manager in both printed and 
electronic formats.

14. Public Notice of the adjustment budget 
2012/2013.

15. Monthly budget statements.

16. Evidence of submission of mid-year 
assessment to National and Provincial 
Treasury by accounting officer in both 
printed and electronic formats.

17. Mid-year assessment of municipality.

18. Appointment of performance 
audit committee if separate from audit 
committee.

19. Evidence of reviewal of PMS by 
audit committee or performance audit 
committee.

20. Recommendations made by audit or 
performance audit committee to council of 
the review of the PMS.

21. Evidence of reviewal by audit or 
performance audit committee of the 
internal audit quarterly reports on 
performance management.

22. Audit reports on the review of 
performance management system 
submitted by audit or performance audit 
committee to council.

23. Annual performance agreements for 
municipal manager and all other senior 
managers.

24. Quarterly performance reports.

25. Performance Management Policy and 
Framework.

26. Performance Management System 
(PMS) Process Plan.

27. Proof that the council annually reviews 
the IDP.

Non compliance of the PAA and non 
submission of required information will 
result in a limitation of scope.

Internal control deficiency
Lack of due care in preparation and 
maintenance of the OPMS data for the 
financial year by the acting municipal 
manager which results in non-compliance.

Recommendation
The municipal manager should submit 
all required performance information for 
auditing to prevent a limitation of scope.

Management response
A new performance manager has been 
appointed and going forward this will be 
better managed at the municipality.

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are accepted and 
will be followed up at the next audit.

3. Performance and other audit 
information not provided.

Audit finding
In terms of section 19(1)(a) of the Public 
Auditors Act (PAA),

An auditee must render all reasonable 
assistance to the Auditor-General or the 
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authorised auditor performing the audit to 
enable the Auditor-General or authorised 
auditor to complete the audit within any 
applicable timeframes.

Requested information for the completion 
of the audit of predetermined objectives 
was not provided to us for auditing.

1. Zamimpilo Creche

2. Mabhodla Market Stall

3. Bhekizenzo, Welawela And Luhlanga 
Small Playground

4. Nkiyankiya Small Playground

5. Phathane Small Playground

6. Hlanganimhlathi Small Playground

7. Soya Small Playground

8. Shwashweni Community Hall

9. Sabokwe Community Hall

10. Nkunzebomvu Multipuporse Centre

11. Mthiya Road

12. Mbabe Road

13. Mpumeni Creche

14. Novunula Paypoint Shelter

15. Amalala Phezulu, Mkhayideni And 
Mpumeni Small Playgrounds

16. Ediphini And Phathane Small Sport 
Fields

17. Ezidonini Small Playground

18. Killers Small Playground

19. Fuyeni Small Playground

20. Silahle Road

21. Mdungandlovu Road

22. List Of Two Areas Where Houses Were 
Completed And Where Allocations Were 
Done

23. Reports For The Completed Houses

24. Progress Reports For Housing Projects

25. WSP Approved And Implementation

26. OPMS Adopted By Council

27. Eskom’s Indigent Register Adopted By 
Council By 30 June 2013

28. Service Level Agreement

29. Service Delivery Agreement

30. Minutes Of The Four Meetings Held 
With Uthungulu For The Facilitating Of The 
Portable Water

31. Minutes Of The Four Meetings Held 
With Uthungulu To Facilitate The Provision 
Of Sanitation

32. Minutes Of The Two Meetings Held 
With Eskom To Facilitate The Provision Of 
Electricity

33. Process Plan For The Review Of The 
Integrated Waste Management Plan

34. Copy Of The Feasibility Study 
Conducted For Waste Management 
Services

35. Evidence Of Exco Approving The Road 
Maintenance Plan

36. Progress Reports With Regards To 
Funding For Sidewalks

37. Evidence Of Funding Being Secured 
For The Fire Fighting Services

38. Evidence Of Reviewing The Disaster 
Management Plan

Non compliance of the PAA and non 
submission of required information will 
result in a limitation of scope.

Internal control deficiency
Lack of due care in preparation and 
maintenance of the OPMS data and 
financial information for
the financial year by the acting municipal 
manager which results in non-compliance.

Recommendation
The municipal manager should submit 
all required performance information for 
auditing to prevent a limitation of scope.

Management response
A new performance manager has been 
appointed and going forward this will be 
better managed at the municipality.

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are accepted and 
will be followed up at the next audit
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ANNExURE	b   |   OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS

4. Preferential point system not used 
for quotations above R30 000 and below 
R200 000

Audit finding
In terms of section 5(1 )(a) of the 
Preferential Procurement Regulations 2011,

There is a lack of supervision, review and 
control over financial information and the 
processing thereof at the municipality.

Internal control deficiency
Compliance with laws and regulations 
have not been adequately enforced and 
monitored by the chief financial officer and 
SCM officer.

Recommendation
The chief financial officer should ensure 
that the SCM officials use the preference 
point system for price quotations between 
R30 000 and R1 000 000 as per the 
Preferential Procurement Regulations. 
Further the entire population should be 
examined and irregular expenditure must 
be disclosed.

Management response
Finding is noted, however the issue with 
the suppliers quoted above was identified 
and included in the register of irregular 
expenditure and disclosed as such in the 
annual financial statements.

“The following formula must be used to 
calculate the points for price in respect of 
tenders (including price quotations) with 
a Rand value equal to, or above R30 000 
and up to a Rand value of R1 000 000 (all 
applicable taxes included)

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 03 November 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are noted 
and as supply chain management is 
an area that needs improvement, this 
should be tracked via the action plan so 
improvements can be better monitored.

5. Use of consultant’s information not 
provided

Audit finding
In terms of section 19(1) (a) of the Public 
Auditors Act (PAA),

An auditee must render all reasonable 
assistance to the Auditor-General or the 
authorised auditor performing the audit to 
enable the Auditor-General or authorised 
auditor to complete the audit within any 
applicable timeframes.

The table on the following page 

Ps = 80[1-(Pt-Pmin)/(Pmin)]”

During the audit of SCM, it was noted that 
the municipality did not use the preference 
point system for all price quotations 
between R30 000 and R1 000 000.

summarises the consultancy contracts 
selected for testing. The following 
information as requested was not 
produced for audit purposes:

1. The formal needs assessment done 
prior to the appointment of the financial 
consultant.

2. Terms of Reference completed for the 
appointment of the financial consultant.

3. Organ gram, showing whether the 
municipality has the internal skills and 
capacity available to perform duties of the 
appointed financial consultants.

4. Evidence whether the appointed 
financial consultant a former employee of 
the municipality.

5. Evidence whether the work of the 
consultant monitored by a senior staff 
member who has the relevant skills and 
experience.

Supplier	  Name	   Amount	  (R)

Aurecon	  South	  Africa	  (Pty)	  Ltd	   98	  568.79
Delta	  Blue	  Trading	  238 75	  085.00
Electro	  Sure	  Contractors	  cc 65	  000.00
Yandintando	  Trading	  182	  (Pty)	  Ltd	   90	  154.90
A	  to	  Z	  Editing	  cc 58	  040.00
Kwambo	  Build	  IT	   35	  125.31
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6. Signed service level agreements 
between the financial consultants and the 
municipality.

7. Tender documentation for the 
appointment of the financial consultant.

As such the following specific focus areas 
could not be tested:

Planning and appointment processes
1. Consultants were appointed without 
a proper needs assessment being 
performed.

2. Consultants were appointed even 
though the skills necessary to perform the 
project, duty or study were available within 
the municipality.

3. Consultants were appointed to perform 
work of a permanent/ continuous in nature 
for which a suitable vacant position exists 
in the establishment and no attempts 
were made to fill the position I permanent 
capacity is needed and no formal attempts 
were made to create a position in the 
establishment.

4. Former employees were appointed as 
consultants immediately after resigning 
from the municipality at remuneration 
packages higher than what they were 
earning as employees.

5. Consultants were appointed as rates 
which are significantly higher than those 
proposed in

8. Evidence whether the financial 
consultant was monitored and under 
performance addressed.

the by relevant professional bodies in the 
consultant’s industry.

6. The municipality procured consultants 
through means other than the transversal 
contract while the services were available 
through a transversal contract in which the 
municipality participates.

7. IT related services classified as 
mandatory were not procured through 
SITA.

8. The procurement of did not comply with 
the prescribed procurement processes. 
Refer the section on procurement and 
contract management for specific findings.

9. Consultants were appointed without 
any terms of reference that define the task 
directive (methodology), objectives, goals, 
scope of the assignment, time frames 
linked to various tasks and frequency of 
monitoring actions.

10. The terms of references used in the 
appointment consultants were inadequate 
as they do not clearly define the task 
directive (methodology), objectives, 
and goals. Scope of the assignment, 
time frames linked to various tasks and 

9. Supporting financial reports and 
vouchers the total amount paid to the 
consultant for the work completed.

frequency of monitoring actions.

Performance management & monitoring
11. Consultancy services were provided 
and payment made to the consultants 
without a signed contract to regulate the 
work of the consultant.

12. Measures to monitor contract 
performance and delivery were not defined 
and/or implemented.

13. Measures applied to monitor 
consultancy projects were insufficient to 
ensure effective contract management 
Transfer of skills.

14. Requirements for transfer of skills were 
not included in the terms of reference.

15. Conditions or clauses relating to 
transfer of skills were not included in the 
contract.

16. No evaluation was performed at 
the end of the consultancy project to 
determine whether skills and knowledge 
were transferred as per the Terms of 
reference and the contract.

Name	  of	  consultant	   Type	  of	  service	   Value	  of	  award	  	  (R)

BCX	  Consultants	   System	  for	  Monthly	  close	  out	  of	  accounts	   331	  947
Minatlou	  Consulting	   Preparation	  of	  financial	  statements	   1	  099	  000
A	  B	  Projects	   Asset	  Verification	   1	  050	  780	  
Umnotho	  Business	  Consulting	   	  Internal	  Audit	   137	  014	  
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Closing and finalisation of projects
17. Deliverables delivered by did not 
match those described in the Terms of 
Reference.

18. No evaluation was performed to 
determine if the consultancy project was 
economically concluded and that value 
for money was obtained by comparing the 
consultant’s services rendered and the 
deliverable to the initial project objectives 
and needs.

19. Proposals or recommendations that are 
contained in the consultant’s reports were 
not considered or implemented.

Non compliance of the PAA and non 
submission of required information will 
result in a limitation of scope.

Internal control deficiency
Lack of due care in preparation and 
maintenance of the financial data for the 
financial year by the acting municipal 
manager which results in non-compliance.

Recommendation
The municipal manager should submit 
all required performance information for 
auditing to prevent a limitation of scope.

Management response
A new performance manager has been 
appointed and going forward this will be 
better managed at the municipality.

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are accepted and 
will be followed up at the next audit.

6. Road Infrastructure information not 
provided

Audit finding
In terms of section 19(1) (a) of the Public 
Auditors Act (PAA),

An auditee must render all reasonable 
assistance to the Auditor-General or the 
authorised auditor performing the audit to 
enable the Auditor-General or authorised 
auditor to complete the audit within any 
applicable timeframes.

The following requested information on 
road infrastructure was not provided:

1. Approved policies and procedures in 
place specific to road infrastructure.

2. An approved road maintenance plan 
(strategy) in place that addresses the:

• allowance for the rectification of existing 
defects;

• description of the work to be carried out; 
and

• forecast of the necessary maintenance 
(preventative, routine and repairs)

• addressing backlogs

• maintenance expenditure for the 
planning period.

3. An approved plan in place to eradicate 
existing backlogs (includes new roads/
upgrading/rehabilitation and maintenance 
backlogs) which details at least the extent of 
backlog, timeline/s for completion, costing to 
clear backlog, and processes for monitoring, 
reporting and corrective actions).

4. An approved organisational structure/
organogram for the road infrastructure unit/
technical services department.

5. Evidence whether the municipality 
budgeted (out of own funds) for all 
planned road maintenance in its 
operational budget.

6. Evidence of the municipality spending in 
accordance with the allocation statement 
received from National CoGTA (MIG 
formula - New roads).

7. Evidence whether a road asset 
management system is in place.

Non compliance of the PAA and non 
submission of required information will 
result in a limitation of scope.

Internal control deficiency
Lack of due care in preparation and 
maintenance of the financial data for the 
financial year by the acting municipal 
manager which results in non-compliance.

Recommendation
The municipal manager should submit 
all required performance information for 
auditing to prevent a limitation of scope.

Management response
A new performance manager has been 
appointed and going forward this will be 
better managed at the municipality.

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are accepted and 
will be followed up at the next audit.
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Period	   PAYE Penalty	   Interest	  
Penalty/Interest	  

Reversal	   Total	  

July 245	  084.07 17	  079.22 10	  796.65 0 27	  875.87
August 268	  257.47 16	  905.45 5	  978.96 0 22	  884.41
September 289	  571.89 28	  957.19 11	  717.40 23	  165.75 17	  508.84
October 260	  955.52 26	  095.55 8	  559.50 20	  876.44 13	  778.61
November 377	  298.57 37	  729.86 11	  523.71 30	  183.88 19	  069.69
December 305	  727.	  38 30	  572.74 5	  695.74 24	  458.19 11	  810.29
January 263	  945.76 26	  394.58 5	  900.81 21	  115.66 11	  179.73
February 315	  378.23 31	  537.82 2	  205.70 25	  230.25 8	  513.27
March 251	  172.40 0 0 0 0
April 251	  922.81 0 0 0 0
May 268	  367.80 24	  289.12 1	  187.84	   0 25	  476.96
June	   309	  118.83 0 0 0 0

Period	   UIF Penalty	   Interest	  
Penalty/Interest	  

Reversal	   Total	  

July	   13	  723.72 1	  372.37 963.88 1	  097.90 1	  238.35
August	   15	  025.54 1	  502.50 947.12 1	  202.50 1	  247.12
September 14	  934.30 1	  493.50 604.34 1	  194.80 903.04
October 16	  087.52 1	  608.75 527.68 1	  287.00 849.43
November 20	  789.82 2	  078.98 871.15 1	  663.18 1	  286.95
December 16	  308.72 1	  630.87 303.83 1	  304.69 630.01
January 16	  311.70 1	  631.17 448.23 1	  304.93 774.47
February 16	  272.82 1	  627.28 341.07 1	  301.82 666.53
March 15	  743.74 0 0 0 0
April 15	  866.16 0 0 0 0
May 16	  490.62 1	  494.31 0.14 0 1	  494.45
June	   16	  106.52 0 0 0 0

Period	   SDL Penalty	   Interest	  
Penalty/Interest	  

Reversal Total	  

July 14	  842.33 1	  484.23 1	  132.32 1	  187.38 1	  429.17
August 16	  051.93 973.15 672.34 0 1	  645.49
September 16	  660.47 0 0 0 0
October 15	  725.00 0 0 	  	  	  -‐1	  258.00 1	  258.00
November 21	  495.46 0 0 0 0
December 17	  016.92 0 0 0 0
Janaury 15	  857.61 0 0 0 0
February	   18	  114.02 0 0 0 0
March 15	  513.38 0 0 0 0
April 15	  759.51 0 0 0 0
May	   16	  365.64 1	  636.56 92.42 0 1	  728.98
June	   17	  214.84 0 0 0 0

September 14	  934.30 1	  493.50 604.34 1	  194.80 903.04
October 16	  087.52 1	  608.75 527.68 1	  287.00 849.43
November 20	  789.82 2	  078.98 871.15 1	  663.18 1	  286.95
December 16	  308.72 1	  630.87 303.83 1	  304.69 630.01
January 16	  311.70 1	  631.17 448.23 1	  304.93 774.47
February 16	  272.82 1	  627.28 341.07 1	  301.82 666.53
March 15	  743.74 0 0 0 0
April 15	  866.16 0 0 0 0
May 16	  490.62 1	  494.31 0.14 0 1	  494.45
June	   16	  106.52 0 0 0 0

Period	   SDL Penalty	   Interest	  
Penalty/Interest	  

Reversal Total	  

July 14	  842.33 1	  484.23 1	  132.32 1	  187.38 1	  429.17
August 16	  051.93 973.15 672.34 0 1	  645.49
September 16	  660.47 0 0 0 0
October 15	  725.00 0 0 	  	  	  -‐1	  258.00 1	  258.00
November 21	  495.46 0 0 0 0
December 17	  016.92 0 0 0 0
Janaury 15	  857.61 0 0 0 0
February	   18	  114.02 0 0 0 0
March 15	  513.38 0 0 0 0
April 15	  759.51 0 0 0 0
May	   16	  365.64 1	  636.56 92.42 0 1	  728.98
June	   17	  214.84 0 0 0 0

Employee costs.

7. Non compliance with payments to be 
made to SARS

Audit finding
In terms of paragraph 2(1) of the 4th 
Schedule- Employees tax, section 6 of 
the Skills Development Levy Act, 1999 
(Act No. 9 Of 1999) and section 8 of the 

Unemployment Insurance Contribution Act, 
2002 (Act No. 2 of 2002), it is prescribed 
that “Employees’ tax, U/F contributions 
and SOL must be paid over to SARS within 
7 days after the end of the month during 
which the amount was deducted.”

Through inspection of the payroll taxes, 
confirmed that the municipality did not 
make payments of the PAYE, SDL and 

UIF within 7 days as prescribed by the 
provisions of the Act. These late payments 
have resulted in fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure of R171 567 being incurred 
in respect of interest and penalties levied 
by SARS as disclosed in the financial 
statements. This amount is broken down 
as follows:
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Furthermore, it was also noted from a 
manual payment to Mr. KE Gamede, for 
his April salary, that the salary expense 
has been understated R60 304.92 and the 
resultant PAYE of R18 642.08 has not been 
paid over to SARS.

There is a lack of supervision, review and 
control over financial information and the 
processing thereof at the municipality. This 
results in further penalties and interest 
being incurred by Mfolozi due to not 
paying accounts timeously.

Internal control deficiency
Inadequate review of payment vouchers by 
chief financial officer resulting in fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure.

Recommendation
The chief financial officer must ensure 
that timeous payments of employees’ 

tax, UIF and SOL deductions are made 
to SARS within 7 days after the end of 
the respective month to prevent any 
interest and penalties from being levied. 
Furthermore, the manual payment to
Mr KE Gamede, must be entered into 
payday system and the appropriate tax 
must be deducted and paid over to SARS.

Management response
Finding is noted, management has 
implemented controls and cash flow 
management strategies to ensure that 
debts are paid as when they become due. 

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 24 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
This matter is outstanding and will be 
reported on so its progress will be included 

on the action plan and tracked.

8. Non compliance with SALBC Main 
Collective Agreement

Audit finding
In terms of section 3.1.2 of the SALBC 
Main Collective Agreement,
An employee is required to take leave 
within each leave cycle as follows:

• 3.1.2.1 A five- (5) day worker shall take a 
minimun of (16) days leave; and

• 3.1.2.2 A six- (6) day worker shall take a 
minimun of (19) days leave.

The following employees did not lake leave 
as per leave requirements:

Name	   Employee	  No. Annual	  leave	  taken	  

BOS	  Mathenjwa KZ281111 10
ST	  Mthethwa KZ281120 5

BF	  Biyela KZ281127 14
BV	  Zisongo KZ281140 14
BN	  Mbuyazi KZ281151 1

S	  Gama KZ281156 11
VS	  Mthethwa KZ281157 0
NV	  Mbuyazi KZ281165 6
PP	  Mhlongo KZ281177 12

SD	  Msimanga	   KZ281187 11
BP	  Mbhamali KZ281196 15
MD	  Dladla	   KZ281198 13
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The staff in the human resources section 
lack skills with regards to human resource 
management and require training. Leave 
balances may not be fairly stated.

Internal control deficiency
Inadequate oversight responsibility over 
internal control and compliance with laws 
and regulations pertaining to Leave by 
Human Resource Management.

Recommendation
Untaken leave should be forfeited if not 
taken as per the requirements. Going 
forward, human resource management 
must develop an effective monitoring tool 
to ensure that the SALGBC provisions with 
regards to leave are adhered to.

Management response
Finding is noted however; the actual 
municipal leave cycle is from January to 
December each year. A SALBC collective 
agreement refers to leave from January 

Expenditure that deviate from the supply 
chain management regulations results in 
irregular expenditure at the municipality.

Internal control deficiency
The municipality should implement controls 
over daily and monthly processing and 
reconciling of expenditure transactions.

Recommendation
The SCM Officer and chief financial officer 
should verify that the three quotations 
are obtained from prospective suppliers, 
for purchases between R1 000 and 

to December and therefore the municipal 
leave cycle and policy has been aligned to 
this. No employee listed in table above has
taken leave of less than 16 days during this 
leave cycle of January to December 2013.

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
This finding has been raised in prior years 
and still remains outstanding and we will 
include it on this report so its progress 
will be included on the action plan and 
tracked.

Operating expenditure

9. Three quotes not obtained deviation 
not accepted

Audit finding
In terms of 6.1(b) and (c) of the 

R200 000, before a supplier can be 
selected. Furthermore, controls should 
be implemented to to ensure that the 
department complies with all SCM related 
laws and regulations. The municipality 
should examine the above transactions
and the entire population to quantify the 
value of irregular expenditure incurred by 
the municipality.

Management response
Finding is noted, however the issue with 
the suppliers quoted above was identified 
and included in the register of irregular 

municipality’s Supply Chain Management 
Policy:

b) The Accounting Officer may procure 
or delegate the procurement officer 
requirement up to estimated value of R 1 
000 to R 10 000 by obtaining at least three 
(3) written or verbal quotations from, where 
applicable, a list of prospective suppliers 
and their quoted prices must be recorded.

c) Accounting Officer may procure or 
delegate the procurement officer up to an 
estimated value of R10 000 to R30 000 by 
obtaining three (3) written quotations from, 
where applicable, a list of prospective 
suppliers abd their quoted prices must be 
recorded.

During the audit it was noted, in the 
following instances, that three quotes were 
not obtained for expenditures incurred.

expenditure and disclosed as such in the 
annual financial statements.

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 03 November 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
As supply chain management is an 
area that needs improvement, this 
should be tracked via the action plan so 
improvements can be better monitored.

Cheque	  No. Supplier Amount	  

16185 SL	  Du	  Toit 74	  360
16073 Hysm	  SA	  (Pty)	  Ltd 94	  800
16305 Mqapheli	  Suppliers 34	  200
16591 New	  Testament 21	  900
15799 Can	  Fire	  Services	   28	  057
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10. No tax clearance certificates for 
amounts exceeding R30 000

Audit finding
In terms of section 13 (b) of the Supply 
Chain Regulations, Government Gazette 

Internal control deficiency
Lack of monitoring of compliance with laws 
and regulations pertaining to supply chain
management by the SCM officer and chief 
financial officer.

Recommendation
The supply chain management officer must 
verify that the recommended supplier has 
submitted a SARS tax clearance certificate 
before an award is made. The municipality 
should examine the above transaction 
and the entire population to determine 
the amount of irregular expenditure to be 
disclosed.

Management response
Finding is noted, however the issue with 
the suppliers quoted above was identified 
and included in the register of irregular 
expenditure and disclosed as such in the 
annual financial statements.

Revenue Services that the provider’s tax 
matter are in order.”

During the audit of SCM, it was noted that 
the following suppliers did not submit tax 
clearance certificates:

a majority of its members.”

As per s62 of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act (MFMA):

“The accounting officer of a municipality 
is responsible for managing the financial 
administration of the municipality, and must 
for this purpose take all reasonable steps 
to ensure that full and proper records of 
the financial affairs are kept in accordance 
with any prescribed norms and standards”

During the audit of revenue received from 
service charges, it was noted that the rate 
used to bill consumers is below the rate of 
15% which is the council approved tariff.

The following table illustrates some of the 
differences which were noted:  >>

No. 27636, “The municipality or municipal 
entity may not consider a written quotation 
or bid unless the provider who submitted 
the quotation or bid has authorised the 
municipality or municipal entity to obtain 
a tax clearance from the South African 

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 03 November 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
As supply chain management is an 
area that needs improvement, this 
should be tracked via the action plan so 
improvements can be better monitored.

11. Incorrect billing of service charge.

Audit finding
As per s75A of the Municipal Systems Act 
(MSA):

“A municipality may levy and recover fees, 
charges or tariffs in respect of any function 
or service of the municipality The fees, 
charges or tariffs referred to are levied by 
a municipality by resolution passed by the 
municipal council with a supporting vote of 

Cheque	  No.	   Supplier: Amount	  

15534 Aurecon	  South	  Africa	  (Pty)	  Ltd 98	  568.79
16326 Delta	  Blue	  Trading	  238 75	  085.00
16314 Electro	  sure	  Contractors	  cc 65	  000.00
15549 Bytes	  Technologies	  Intergration 366	  263.75
15529 Mbali	  Investments	  cc 138	  077.03
16333 Batatu	  Suppliers	   323	  646.00
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Per inquiry of S Mchunu (controller: 
income), all tariffs are updated by BCX, IT 
consultants onto the Evenus system. There 
is, therefore is a lack of proper controls to 
ensure that tariffs being uploaded by the 
consultants are the correct and approved 
tariffs. Non compliance of the MSA and 
the MFMA as the revenue being collected 
is not accurate and not as per the 
council approved rate, this results in the 
municipality revenue being understated 
as it is not receiving all the revenue it had 
budgeted to receive.

Internal control deficiency
The financial manager failed to implement 
proper record keeping in a timely manner 
to ensure that complete, relevant and 
accurate financial information is accessible 
and available to support financial reporting 
and, failed to implement formal controls 
over IT systems to ensure the reliability 
of the systems and the accuracy of 
information.

Recommendation
Tighter controls in ensuring that tariffs 

being uploaded by the consultants are the 
correct and approved tariffs so consumers 
are billed correctly. The formula on system 
needs to be updated, as the refuse charge 
is based on the rates charges.

Management response
The finding is noted, management will 
implement controls to ensure that the tariffs 
are correct as per the Council Policy.

Mr JV Nkosi
Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
This matter is outstanding and will be 
reported on so its progress will be included 
on the action plan and tracked.

IT Governance

12.$

Audit finding
IT Governance framework was developed 
and approved, however it was not 

comprehensively documented to cover 
the following processes in detail; plan and 
organize, acquire and implement, deliver 
and support, monitor and evaluate.

This may result in an increased risk 
that IT functions will not be governed 
in a standardised manner across the 
municipality. This may result in IT staff 
not having entity-wide IT governance 
standards to ascribe to, and management 
may not have a framework or guidance to 
align to, in order to adequately govern IT 
within the organisation.

Internal control deficiency
Governance: Management oversight over 
reporting.

An individual that was assigned 
responsibility to develop policies 
including IT governance framework left 
the municipality before documenting or 
finalising policies.

Recommendation
The IT manager should ensure that the 

Debtor	  No. Name	   Rates	  charged	  
Refuse	  charge	  at	  15%	  

of	  rate Actual	  refuse	  charge	   Undercharge	  

5001192 Louw	  G	  D 101.77 13.39 12.64 (0.75)
5001195 Thomas	  B	  E	   101.77 13.39 12.64 (0.75)
5001197 Bezuidenhout	  C	  V 149.10 19.62 18.5 (1.12)
5000782 Vink	  L	  R 291.10 38.30 36.13 (2.17)
5000794 Mtetwa	  &	  Ntlokwana	  R	  &	  NP 537.24 70.69 66.68 (4.01)
5001222 The	  Osborne	  Family	  Trust-‐Trustees	   794.97 104.60 98.68 (5.92)
5000090 Hardy	  B	  J 695.60 91.53 86.33 (5.20)
5000869 Kwabonambi	  Engineering	  CC 1321.63 173.90 164.04 (9.86)
5000022 Simunye	  Supermarket 1381.25 181.74 171.44 (10.30)
5000089 Minichello	  M 993.71 130.75 123.34 (7.41)
5000100 Moodley	  G	  &	  P 1291.82 169.98 160.34 (9.64)
5001226 Palkor	  (Pty)	  Ltd 1490.57 196.13 185.02 (11.11)
5000069 Bezuidenhout	  &	  De	  Beers	  D/P 319.50 42.04 39.66 (2.38)
5001308 Triple	  Option	  Trading	  397	  CC 295.83 38.93 36.72 (2.21)
5000717 Tiran	  Instrumentasie 1391.19 183.05 172.68 (10.37)
5001209 Kunene	  H	  S	  &	  N	  T 300.56 39.55 37.31 (2.24)
5000166 Lloyd	  J	  C 426.00 56.05 52.88 (3.17)
5000295 Ntenga	  N	  C 395.23 52.00 49.06 (2.94)
5000798 Westward	  Trading	  CC	  c/o	  Mr.	  Jee,	  J 1689.30 222.28 209.68 (12.60)
5000032 Kwabonambi	  Bottle	  Store	  (Pty) 1768.80 232.74 219.55 (13.19)
5000148 McFerren	  D	  C	   466.23 61.35 57.87 (3.48)
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IT Governance Framework get updated, 
approved and implemented. Management 
should also ensure that IT staff should 
be adequately trained with regard to 
the implementation of the framework’s 
processes and procedures, once they 
have been finalized.

Management response
Agreed. The DPSA framework will be used 
to develop the IT framework.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: December 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

13. No formalised annual IT strategy 
document

Audit finding
As previously reported, an Information 
Technology strategic plan has been 
developed and approved, however the 
document was not comprehensively 
documented. The following was not 
included: tasks to implement the plans, 
extent of integration of business operations 
and IT, structure of the IT environment, 
approach towards technology, planning 
guidelines, constraints, expected growth 
and finances, purpose of IT environment, 
services the IT environment has to deliver, 
resource requirements, facilities.

This could result in information technology 
goals not contributing to municipal 
strategic objectives, related costs and 
risks. This may result in fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure, as well as IT not 
meeting the business needs of the 
organization.

Internal control deficiency
Governance: Management oversight over 
reporting.

Currently the municipality does not have an 
IT Manager. The IT section is outsourced 
to the service provider. The employee from 
the service provider who is an engineer 
a technical person was assigned the 
responsibility to develop policies.

Recommendation
Management should consider updating, 
approving and implementing an IT 
Strategic Plan. This plan should be 
aligned to the business objectives of the 
municipality. Furthermore, the approved 
plan should be communicated to all key 
stakeholders within the municipality. 
Typical points for consideration are as 
follows (but not limited to):

• This plan should detail how IT will 
support IT- enabled programs and 
operational service delivery.

• It should detail how the IT and business 
objectives will be met and measured, and 
should receive formal sign-off form all the 
stakeholders;

• This plan should also cover the 
operational budget, funding sources, 
acquisition strategy,and legal and 
regulatory requirements; and

• This plan should also incorporate 
tasks to implement the plans, extent of 
integration of business operations and IT, 
structure of the IT environment, approach 
towards technology, planning guidelines, 
constraints, expected growth and finances, 
purposes of IT environment, services the 
IT environment has to deliver, resource 
requirements, facilities.

• This plan should be reviewed at least on 
an annual basis so as to ensure that it is 
still aligned with the goals and objective of 

the municipality.

Management response
Agreed. This will be developed as 
recommended.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

Auditors Comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

14. Service performance reviews were 
not performed.

Audit finding
There was no formal process to review 
and report on the performance of 
services rendered by service provider 
Bytes for managing the IT section and 
maintaining the IT infrastructure. Moreover 
the municipality does request the review 
performance reports form BCX. The BCX 
service level agreement page 30 par 3 
indicates that the performance reports 
are available on request for review by the 
municipality). There was no indication 
that IT service providers submit regular 
reports or hold regular performance review 
meetings with the municipality.

Furthermore BCX indicated that on 
Quarterly bases they monitor performance 
of the Operating system Linux, database 
performance and database space. The 
municipality does not request reports of 
review of systems by the service provider.

Management may not be in a position to 
adequately assess the performance of the 
service provider.
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Internal control deficiency

Governance: Management oversight over 
reporting.

Management did not see the need to 
review performance reports because 
the municipality has an SLA with the 
service provider. Moreover management 
did not fully understand the objectives 
of performing this review and did not 
understand the associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should consistently monitor 
service providers performance through 
regular review of performance reports 
as well as holding service provider 
performance review meetings at 
scheduled times to ensure achievement of 
agreed upon service levels.

Management response
Agreed. This will be done regularly doing 
forward

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors Comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

15. Action plan to address IT risks

Audit finding
An action plan was not in place to address 
IT risks identified in the risk register.
Without an action plan management will 
not be able to effectively address and/
or put mitigating controls on IT risks 
identified during the risk assessment. 
Not addressing those IT risks that require 
priority, could negatively impact the 
business operations, its financial well- 
being.

Internal control deficiency

Governance: Management oversight over 
reporting.

Management did not see the need to 
develop an action plan because they did 
not understand management did not fully 
understand the objectives of developing 
and continuously maintaining an action 
plan. Management did not understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that an 
action plan is developed and updated 
frequently to monitor progress on controls 
that need to be mitigated. The action plan 
should be developed and individuals and 
action dates should be assigned address 
risks identified so that appropriate and 
applicable measures are taken to control 
or mitigate the risk within a reasonable time 
frame.

Management response
An action plan will be formulated to 
address IT risks.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

16. Payday license agreement not 
signed

Audit finding
Although the Payday license agreement 
was in place, it was not signed by the 
municipality. Moreover there was not 
contract or an agreement between the 
municipality and the payday to perform 
user account management on payday 

application.

If the roles, responsibilities and obligations 
of each party are not formally defined 
and agreed upon, neither party can hold 
the other accountable for breaches of the 
agreement which could result in
inadequate service delivery.

Internal control deficiency

Governance: Management oversight over 
reporting.

Management did not see the need to have 
a signed license agreement because the 
Payday application is a packaged system. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that license 
agreements are signed by both parties 
and ensure that roles, responsibilities 
and obligations of each party are formally 
defined and agreed upon.

Management response
This will be signed in December.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors Comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

17. Bytes service level agreement not 
dated

Audit finding
Although the BYTES service level 
agreement (SLA) was in place and 
signed by both parties, the SLA did not 
indicate the effective date. Page 5 par 2 
and 3 of the SLA the Statements point to 
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the effective date of the SLA and in this 
case the validity of the SLA could not be 
determined. Officials that were assigned 
responsibility to sing the SLA did not put 
the date, therefore could not determine 
whether the SLA is still valid or it is 
outdated.

If the Validity of the SLA could not be 
determined, neither party can hold 
the other accountable for breaches of 
the agreement which could result in 
inadequate service delivery.

Internal control deficiency 
Governance: Management oversight over 
reporting.

Management did not fully understand the 
risks of having an outdated service level 
agreement.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that service 
level agreements are dated accordingly 
to ensure continuous support of services 
provided by the service provider.

Management response
The SLA will be resigned

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

18. Lack of an information technology 
steering committee

Audit finding
During the audit, it was noted that there 
is currently no formalized IT Steering 
Committee or any other committee 
responsible for governing the IT section.

This might increase probability that IT 
would lack strategic direction without the 
development and implementation of an IT 
Steering Committee. Without a formalized 
forum to discuss operational and strategic 
IT objectives of the municipality as well 
as monitoring the progress towards these 
IT goals, IT may not adequately meet 
business objectives. This may impact 
on availability, security and integrity 
of IT- related functions required by the 
municipality.

Internal control deficiency 
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls

Appropriate Key controls not implemented 
as there is lack of formalization of IT 
policies and procedures resulting in a lack 
of an IT management platform to discuss 
operational and strategic objectives of IT.

Recommendation
Management should consider the 
development of a formalized IT Steering 
Committee in order to periodically discuss 
operational and strategic objectives of 
the IT function. To facilitate this process, 
IT Steering Committee meeting should 
be scheduled on a periodic basis for IT 
management and Key individuals from the 
business to ensure that the IT strategy is 
aligned to the business strategy. Agendas, 
minutes and action plans for these 
meetings should be formally maintained 
and approved by the committee.

Management response
IT issues will be addressed in MANCO 
going forward.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment 
Management responses are noted and 

the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

Security management

19. Information technology policies and 
procedures not documented adequately

Audit finding 
Cognisance was taken of the fact that the 
operating system security standards and 
procedures had been established to deal 
with security issues at the municipality; 
however the IT security policy was not 
comprehensively documented. The 
following was not included:

• Aims and scope of the policy

• Responsibility for IT security

• Actions to be taken due to a security 
incident 

• What security policies are relevant to 
what users 

• Disciplinary measures

• Ownership of information and 
classification of information

• Administrative arrangements

Without an adequately documented and 
communicated IT policies and procedures 
there is an increased risk that IT functions 
will not be performed in a standardized/
consistent manner across the municipality, 
furthermore, employees may not be 
aware of their responsibilities with regard 
to various IT functions, processes and 
security issues across the municipality.

Internal control deficiency
Governance: Management oversight over 
reporting
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The responsibility to develop IT Policies 
was left with the technical person 
employed by the service provider 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation 
Management should ensure that policies 
and procedures are developed in 
accordance with a credible best practice 
framework.  These policies should govern 
the IT control environment  and should 
cater for all key IT risk areas with the 
municipality. Management should ensure 
that end users are adequately informed 
with regard to the implementation of 
policies and procedures once they have 
been finalised.

Management response
Documents will be updated and sent to 
council for approval

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

20. Patch management policy / process 
not adequately documented

Audit finding
Patch management process was not 
included in the approved IT security policy, 
moreover patches were installed manually 
which increase the risk of now critical 
patches not being installed immediately. 
Antivirus process was also not included 
in the approved IT security policy. This 
might negatively impact the security of the 
municipal systems.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls.

The responsibility to develop IT Policies 
was left with the technical person 
employed by the service provider. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management is encouraged to formally 
update the IT security policy to include 
patch management and antivirus 
management policy:

• A list of computers, servers, and 
peripherals on Umfolozi network

• Allocation of roles and responsibilities for 
patch management activities

• Patch management schedules

• A list of which patches and updates 
will be carried out using the change 
management process and which could be 
done without

• Definition of which e-mail attachments 
and internet downloads are safe to open 
and the process in which this would be 
communicated to the users.

Management response
This will be included in the update IT 
policy, which will be sent for approval by 
council.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors Comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

User access Controls

User account management (network)

21. Inadequate network user account 
management procedures

Audit finding
As previously reported, network user 
accounts management procedure was in 
place, however it was not comprehensively 
documented. The following processes 
have not been included:

• Termination of access and inactive 
accounts

• Change of access
(users transferred, promoted)

• Monitoring actions of the system 
controllers on application security level  
(creation of IDs)

• User ID maintenance

• Allocating functions to users and 
periodic checks to ensure employees’ 
access is commensurate with their job 
responsibilities.

If user account management processes 
are not formalized and comprehensively 
documented this could result I user 
account management activities not being 
dealt with in a consistent manner .
This could further result in unauthorized 
access being awarded to users.

Internal Control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls

The responsibility to develop IT Policies 
was left with the technical person 
employed by the service provider. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that user 
account management procedure is 
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updated to include the short comings 
identified above. The policy should 
be approved, implemented and 
communicated to users once it has been 
finalized.

Management response
This will be included in the updated IT 
policy, which will be sent for approval by 
council.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment 
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

22. Lack of review of information 
technology administrator activities

Audit finding
As previously reported, there was no 
evidence of review of IT administrator 
activities on the network.

This may result in unauthorized activities 
being performed and accountability would 
not be established or timely detected.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls policies and 
procedures.

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management 
procedure/policy. Moreover the 
responsibility to develop IT Policies was 
left with the technical person employed by 
the service provider. Management did not 
fully understand and associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that activities 
of the person with powerful privileges such 

as controller/ administrator privileges are 
monitored periodically by an independent 
person and evidence of reviews should be 
retained.

Management response
This will be performed going forward.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors Comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

23. Review of access violations on the 
network

Audit finding
Evidence of review of access violations on 
the network was not in place.

Lack of periodic review of access 
violations may result in the inability to 
detect whether unauthorized access to 
systems was attempted and / or gained by 
intruder.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls policies and 
procedures.

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management 
procedure/policy. Moreover the 
responsibility to develop IT Policies was 
left with the technical person employed 
by the service provider. Management did 
not fully understand risks associated with 
access violations.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that the 
process of reviewing access violations 
on the network is developed and 

implemented. The process at minimum 
should include, the responsible official 
that will perform the reviews, frequency of 
reviews, signing off as evidence of review 
etc. Evidence of reviews should be kept for 
audit purposes.

Management response
This will be performed going forward.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

User account management (venus)

24. Inadequate venus user account 
management procedures

Audit finding
As previously reported, Venus user 
account management procedure was not 
in place.

If user account management processes 
are not formalized this could result in user 
account management activities not being 
dealt with in a consistent manner which 
could even result in unauthorized access 
being awarded to the systems.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Lack of implementation of 
appropriate key controls

The responsibility to develop IT Policies 
was left with the technical person 
employed by the service provider 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that Venus 
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user account management procedure is 
developed, approved and implemented. 
The policy should be communicated to 
users once it has been finalised.

Management response
This will be developed, as the server has 
been moved from Uthungulu.

Responsible Official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment 
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

25. Venus new user access request 
forms not completed adequately

Audit finding
As previously reported, new user access 
request forms were not adequately 
completed. The following fields were not 
always completed: user signature and 
date.

This may result in fictitious accounts being 
created on the system without an adequate 
trace.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls policies and 
procedures.

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management
procedure/policy. Moreover the importance 
of internal controls was relaxed because of 
trust among employees. Management did 
not fully understand the associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that Venus 
user account management procedure is 
developed, approved and implemented. 

The inconsistency in the completion of 
access request forms is addressed and 
implemented.

Management response
The users will be required to complete 
and management will review the form for 
completeness before granting access.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

26. Lack of review of venus 
administrator activities.

Audit finding
As previously reported, there was no 
evidence of review of Venus administrator 
activities as the administrator was also 
responsible for network administration.

Unauthorised activities might be 
performed and accountability would 
not be established or timely detected. 
Furthermore, this could result in user ID 
maintenance activities being performed by 
the Venus administrator without valid and 
approved requests.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls policies and 
procedures.

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management 
procedure/policy. Moreover the importance 
of internal controls was relaxed because of 
trust among employees of the Municipality. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that activities 
of the persons with powerful privileges 
such as controller/administrator privileges 
are monitored and reviewed periodically 
by an official responsible and evidence of 
reviews should be retained.

Management response
A process of performing reviews will be 
developed and reviews will be conducted.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

27. Review of access violations/audit 
trail on venus application

Audit finding
Evidence of review of access violations/
audit trail on the Venus application was not 
in place. The BCX service level agreement 
on page 57 par 2.12 indicates that BCX will 
provide or allow the municipality to draw 
the audit trail to review service provider 
access.

Lack of periodic review of access 
violations may result in the inability to 
detect whether unauthorized access to 
systems was attempted and/or gained by 
the intruder.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls (policies and 
procedures).

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management 
procedure/policy. Moreover the importance 
of internal controls was relaxed because of 
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trust among employees of the department. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that the 
process of reviewing access violations 
on Venus is developed and implemented. 
The process at minimum should include, 
the responsible official that will perform 
the reviews, frequency of reviews, signing 
off as evidence of review etc. Evidence of 
reviews should be kept for audit purposes.

Management response
A process of performing reviews will be 
developed and reviews will be conducted.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

User account management (payday)

28. Lack of documented payday user 
account management procedures.

Audit finding
As previously reported, Payday user 
accounts management procedure was 
no in place, If user account management 
processes are not formalized this could 
result in user account management 
activities not being belt with in a consistent 
manner which could even result in 
unauthorised access being awarded to the 
systems.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls.

Lack of implementation of appropriate key 

controls (policies and procedures)

This was attributed by lack of awareness 
and knowledge to ensure that, processes 
need to be documented and approved 
to be able to enforce consistent 
implementation. The importance of internal 
controls were relaxed due to trust among 
employees of the HR department.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that user 
account management procedure is 
developed, approved and implemented. 
The policy should be communicated to 
users once it has been finalised.

Management response
The user management procedure will be 
developed.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

29. Payday access request forms not 
completed.

Audit finding
There was no formal documentation 
completed for new user registration, 
resetting passwords, change of users’ 
access rights and termination of access 
to the application Forms were designed 
by the service provider but they were not 
utilized.

Lack of access request forms could results 
in lack of audit trail access granted to the 
systems and could even result in access 
being gained to the systems without 
proper approval. Moreover this may result 
in fictitious accounts being created on the 

system without an adequate trace.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls policies and 
procedures.

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management
procedure/policy. Management did not 
understand the risk associate with user 
access controls.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that Payday 
user account management procedure is 
developed, approved and implemented.

Management response
Forms will be designed and completed 
going forward.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

30. Inadequate password controls

Audit finding
The following password settings could not 
be determined, minimum password length, 
complexity, age, and history and lockout 
settings.

Inadequate password controls may result 
in unauthorised access to information 
resources, loss of data confidentiality and 
integrity.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls policies and 
procedures.
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Management did not understand the risk 
associate with user access controls.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that Payday 
user account management procedure is 
developed, approved and implemented. 
Password controls should be included 
in the procedure and also tested for 
compliance.

Management response
Password setting will be implemented as 
recommended.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

31. Lack of review of payday 
administrator activities.

Audit finding
Evidence of review of Payday administrator 
activities was not in place. The following 
Payday Administrator activities were not 
reviewed user creation, password reset, 
change of access rights and termination of 
access.

If system administrator activities are not 
controlled, this may result in unauthorized 
activities being performed and accountability 
would not be established or timely 
detected. Furthermore, this could result 
in user ID maintenance activities being 
performed by the administrator without 
valid and approved requests.

Internal control deficiency

Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls. Implementation 
of appropriate key controls policies and 
procedures.

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management
Procedure/policy. Management did not 

understand the risk associate with user 
access controls.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that activities 
of the persons with powerful privileges 
such as controller/administrator privileges 
should be monitored periodically by 
the responsible official and evidence of 
reviews should be retained.

Management response
A process of performing reviews will be 
developed and reviews will be conducted.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

32. Lack of review of payday user 
access rights.

Audit finding
There was no evidence of review of 
user access rights to ensure that their 
access is still commensurate with their 
actual job responsibilities. Prince Ndlanzi 
(Expenditure Department) account was not 
timely removed from the application.

This may result in users having functions 
that are not in line with their actual job 
descriptions, which lead to unauthorized 
activities performed could remain 
undetected and the user not being held 
accountable.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Implementation of 
appropriate key controls. Implementation 
of appropriate key controls policies and 
procedures.

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management 
procedure/policy. Management did not 
understand the risk associated with user 
access controls.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that 
appropriateness of employees’ access 
rights and privileges on the Payday system 
is periodically reviewed to ensure that 
it is still commensurate with their actual 
job responsibilities. Evidence of reviews 
should be retained.

Management response
A process of performing reviews will be 
developed and reviews will be conducted.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

33. Lack of access violations/audit trails 
review on payday application

Audit finding
Evidence of review of access violations 
on the payday was not in place. Lack of 
periodic review of access violations may 
result in the inability to detect whether 
unauthorized access to systems was 
attempted and/or gained by the intruder.

If users’ activities are not proactively 
monitored, access violations might not 
be timely detected, which could lead 
to unauthorized activities performed 
remaining undetected and the perpetrators 
not being held accountable. Moreover 
users having functions that are not 
commensurate with their actual job 
descriptions.
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Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Lack of implementation of 
appropriate key controls (policies and 
procedures)

This was attributed by lack of documented 
and approved user account management 
procedure/policy. The importance of 
internal controls was relaxed because 
of trust among employees of the HR 
department. HR management did not see 
the need because the number of payday 
users was not high and they all know each 
other.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that the 
process of reviewing access violations on 
Payday is developed and implemented. 
The process at minimum should include, 
the responsible official that will perform 
the reviews, frequency of reviews, signing 
off as evidence of review etc. Evidence of 
reviews should be kept for audit purposes.

Management response
A process of performing reviews will be 
developed and reviews will be conducted.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

Physical and environmental controls 

34. Lack of documented facilities and 
environmental controls policy

Audit finding
There was no documented and approved 
facilities and environmental controls policy. 
Lack physical and environmental controls 
policy. Lack physical and environmental 

controls procedure may result in 
employees being indifferent about security 
issues that are applicable to them. This 
may also result in loss of equipment.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Lack of implementation of 
appropriate key controls.

The responsibility to develop IT Policies 
was left with the technical person 
employed by the service provider. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that Physical 
Security and Environmental controls Policy 
for the server room is developed, formally 
approved and implemented. The policy at 
least includes the following:

• Physical access to sensitive areas in 
controlled by the use of access cards/
combination locks or other techniques.

• All access to sensitive areas by 
authorized visitors (including technical 
support staff, engineers, and cleaners) is 
supervised.

• Physical access to master terminals and 
consoles is restricted to authorized staff 
only.

• Procedures are place to control the 
removal of physical media form secured 
locations.

• Appropriate physical access controls 
apply outside normal working hours.

• Discarded computer equipment and 
data media is well controlled.

• Wiring closets are physically secure 
with only authorized access possible and 
cabling is routed as much as possible 
underground or through secured conduits.

• Environmental and safety monitoring 
equipment and records are maintained.

• Determine if adequate fire, smoke and 
water detection devices are used together 
with the necessary mans of extinguishing 
firs and removing smoke and water.

Management response
This will be included in the IT security 
policy.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 December 2013

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

35. Inadequate security on the server 
room access.

Audit finding
There is locked door to access a server 
room; however the door only is not 
sufficient. Furthermore the keys are kept 
by an external administrator and there are 
no spare keys that are available within the 
municipality premises which pose a risk 
should something happen to original keys 
that are taken home daily by administrator.

This may result in loss of disruption of 
business operations in case key to server 
room got lost, there will be no access to 
the server room to fix problems that might 
threaten business operations.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Oversight responsibility over 
reporting

This could be attributed by lack of budget 
and management not understanding the risk 
associated server room access controls.
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Recommendation
Management should ensure that the 
security to a server room is increased.

Management response
The security will be increased after making 
consideration to the budget.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

36. Environmental controls not adequate

Audit finding
There was not temperature control system, 
water and smoke detectors inside the 
server room. This may result in loss of data 
and equipment in case of fire, resulting in 
loss of business operations.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Oversight responsibility over 
reporting

This could be attributed by lack of budget 
and management not understanding 
the risk associated server room access 
controls.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that 
temperature control system, water and 
smoke detectors are installed inside the 
server room to protect equipment and 
servers.

Management response
The security will be increased after making 
consideration to the budget.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

IT service continuity 

37. Inadequate backup procedure

Audit finding 
The approved backup policy/procedure 
did not include the following processes: 
backup reports and registers, monitoring 
and review of backups, process handling 
of unsuccessful backups, what data, 
systems and application software should 
be backed up, offsite storage and retention 
periods.

Inadequate backup procedures may 
lead to an inconsistent process of taking 
backups which may result to loss of data, 
or data not being available in case of a 
disaster.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Lack of implementation of 
appropriate key controls.

The responsibility to develop IT Policies 
was left with the technical person 
employed by the service provider. 
Management did not fully understand the 
associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that back up 
standards and procedures are enhanced 
to address the shortcoming indicated 
above. The backup policy/procedure should 
be approved after it has been finalized. 
Compliance to approve policies should be 
tested and procedures should be updated 
when new processes are introduced.

Management response
The policy will be updated.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

38. Inadequate backup procedure

Audit finding
There was no evidence in place to 
substantiate that backups were done 
during the period under review and the 
backups were tested for restoration.

Lack of backups may result in data not 
being available for restoration in case of a 
disaster.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Lack of implementation of 
appropriate key controls.

Lack of backup plan when systems 
are being serviced by external service 
providers. Management did not fully 
understand the associated risks.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that backup 
logs are kept as evidence of backups 
done for the period under review.

Management response
The procedure will be updated.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 

41



management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

39. Lack of documented business 
continuity plan

Audit finding
A formal, comprehensive and approved 
Business Continuity Plan (BCP) had not 
been established for the municipality. 
Without a tested Business Continuity 
plan, the organization might not be aware 
whether business operations would be 
timely resumed in a short period of time 
after a major disaster.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Oversight responsibility over 
reporting

This could be attributed by lack of budget 
and skilled resources to formally document 
and test the Business Continuity Plan.

Recommendation
The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) should 
ensure that the Business Continuity Plan 
is developed; formally approved and 
adequate provision should be made in the 
BCP to cover all possible disasters. The 

BCP should then be tested to ensure the 
effectiveness of the plan and to further 
ensure that the business will be able to 
timely recover and resume its operations. 
A copy of the BCP should also be kept at 
offsite storage.

Management response
The BCP will be documented.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 May 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.

40. Inadequate disaster recovery plan

Audit finding
A Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) had been 
established for the municipality; however 
it is still not yet approved. Without an 
approved and tested Disaster recovery 
plan the business may not be unable to 
recover IT systems timely in the event of 
a disaster resulting in possible financial 

losses and reputational damage.

Internal control deficiency
Leadership: Oversight responsibility over 
reporting 

This could be attributed by lack of budget 
and skilled resources to formally document 
and test the Disaster Recovery Plan.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that the 
disaster recovery plan is approved, tested 
and reviewed regularly. Evidence of test 
results should be retained.

Management response
The DRP will be updated.

Responsible official: JV Nkosi
Position: CFO
Action date: 31 March 2014

Auditors comment
Management responses are noted and 
the corrective actions agreed upon by 
management will be assessed on a 
quarterly basis.
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ANNExURE	C   |   ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

Employee costs

41. Non Compliance with Overtime 
Policy

Audit finding
In terms of paragraph 2.1 of the overtime 
policy adopted by the municipality, it states 
that overtime may only be worked with 
the prior consent of the relevant Head of 
Department and shall be limited in order 
to ensure that no employee works for more 

This  was caused by a lack of  internal 
control, due to circumstances beyond 
the control of Mfolozi (ie Emergency 
Situations). Non approval of overtime prior 
to the performance of the work results 
in unnecessary costs incurred by the 
municipality as employees work time that 
has not been appropriately provided for.

Internal control deficiency
The accounting officer did not exercise 
ongoing supervision and monitoring of 
the compliance with the prescript of the 
overtime policy.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that prior to 
any overtime being worked, each Head 
of Department should assess whether 
it is necessary for that overtime to be 
performed and provide prior consent to 
the work being performed. Furthermore, 
Human Resource Management should 
ensure that the limited hours of overtime 
worked per employee, as prescribed by 
the overtime policy, are adhered to in order 
to comply with the overtime policy.

Name of 
Employee

Employee 
Number

Hours Per 
Day Date Post Reason for Overtime

P Meyiwa 330117 8.5 29/03/2013 Waste Management - General Worker Cleaning Taxi Rank and Toilet

ML Gama 330121 8 13/01/2013 Waste Management - General Worker Chruch was held
in the Municipal Hall

S Cele 118 10 16/03/2013 Waste Management - General Worker Wedding Day in Hall

SZ Cebekhulu 119 10 27/04/2013 Technical Services - Driver Loadign truck at t/station
using TLB

ST Mthethwa 120 6 27/04/2013 Technical Services - Driver Working at waste station

RS Mathiyane 124 8 01/05/2013 Waste Management - General Worker Working at waste station

VS Mthethwa 157 9 05/05/2013 Waste Management - General Worker Cutting Grass

N Mbuyazi 165 10 05/05/2013 Waste Management - General Worker Working at ward 8,
collecting papers

TSM Gumede 197 9 05/05/2013 Waste Management - General Worker Collecting Dustbins

SD Msimanga 187 4 11/07/2013 Financial Services Making copies at year end for 
creditors reconciliation

than three (3) hours on any day and more 
than 10 hours in any week or more than 40 
hours per month.

It is also noted form prior year that:

The Emergency personnel are excluded 
from the limitations of the Basic Conditions 
of employment Act. Employees are limited 
to claim 40 hours overtime per month, 
which constitutes 10 hours per week as 
per the provisions of the Basic Conditions 

of Employment Act.

During the audit of overtime (employee 
related costs) it was noted that prior 
authorization was not granted to any 
employee (by the head of department/
manager) before the employee worked the 
overtime. Furthermore, it was noted that 
from the sample selected, the following 
employees worked overtime of more than 
three (3) hours a day and /or more than ten 
(10) hours a week:

Management response
Finding is noted, however these 
employees have worked either on 
weekends or on a public holiday. It must 
also be noted, that none of employees 
listed above has worked for more than 10 
hours a week.
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42.Non compliance regarding pre-approval 
of leave

Audit finding
During the audit, it was noted that the following 
employees shown in the table below did not 
have their annual leave forms pre-approved 
before the employee went on leave.

Lack of proper controls to ensure employees 
take annual leave only if it has been approved. 
This may cause employees to take leave in 
excess of how much they have available.

Internal control deficiency
Inadequate oversight responsibility over 
internal control and compliance with laws and 
regulations pertaining to Leave by Human 
Resource Management.

Recommendation
Annual leave should be pre-approved to 
improve controls over leave at the municipality.

Management response
We agree with the finding. The taking of leave 
that is pre-approved has been emphasized by
Senior Manager’s during staff meetings. This 
control has been implemented to ensure that 
the process of pre-approval takes place.

Management takes cognizance of the fact that employee no 10 worked during 
the week, however it was an exceptional case, as the work was required in 
finalizing for the year end. The employee in the question did not work for more 
than 10 hours a week.

Name: Mr JV Nkosi
Position: Chief Financial Officer
Date: 24 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are noted. As overtime is an area that needs 
improvement, this will
remain so it can be tracked via the action plan and improvements can be 
monitored.

Name of 
Employee

Employee 
Number

Leave 
Form 

Number

Date Leave 
Taken

Approved 
Date

PS Ndlanzi KZ281221 5083 12/08/2013 13/08/2013

N Thabethe KZ281214 4932 22/04/2013 23/05/2013

BS Dlomo KZ281166 5067 09/04/2013 29/07/2013

PP Mhlongo KZ281177 4898 01/03/2013 17/04/2013

BT Mcambi KZ281216 4868 19/03/2013 08/04/2013

TA Mpanza KZ281207 3984 22/07/2013 23/07/2013

FB Mthethwa KZ281180 4870 18/03/2013 27/03/2013

PT Shandu KZ281138 3997 05/06/2013 22/07/2013

IB Cele 330519 3951 03/06/2013 25/06/2013

SZ Cebekhulu KZ281119 4960 22/04/2013 09/05/2013

JM Zulu KZ281209 4879 02/04/2013 03/04/2013

Date Holiday or Weekend

29/03/2013 Friday - Public Holiday

13/01/2013 Sunday

16/03/2013 Saturday

27/04/2013 Saturday

27/04/2013 Saturday

01/05/2013 Wednesday - Public Holiday

05/05/2013 Sunday

05/05/2013 Sunday

05/05/2013 Sunday

The following employees are applicable:

Name: Mr JV Nkosi
Position: Chief Financial Officer
Date 24 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are accepted and this will be followed up at the next 
audit. As leave is an area that needs improvement, it needs to be tracked via 
the action plan so improvements can be better monitored.
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Operating expenditure

43. Vat incorrectly accounted for in the 
general ledger

Audit finding
In terms of: S1 0(2)(V AT Act) The 
value to be placed o any supply of 
goods or services, save as is otherwise 
provided in this section, be the amount 
of the consideration, as determined 
in accordance with the provisions of 
subsection (3}, less so much of such 
amount as represents tax.

ss (3) For the purposes of this Act the 
amount of any consideration referred to in 
this section shall:

(a) to the extent that such consideration is 
a consideration in money, the amout of the 
money and

(b) to the extent that such consideration 
is not a consideration in money, the open 
market value of that consideration.

In the sample below, input VAT has not 
been claimed from SARS. The municipality 
is a VAT vendor and has a separate VAT 
input account but the VAT was incorrectly 
expensed.

This misstatement of the expenditure 

amount was as a result of human error and 
lack of supervision over the general ledger. 
This error was unnoticed throughout 
the period and is thus a pervasive error 
throughout the categories of expenditures. 
This misstatement could result in 
overstatement of the expenditure account.

Internal control deficiency
The municipality did not implement 
proper record keeping in a timely manner 
to ensure that complete, relevant and 
accurate information is accessible 
and available to support financial and 
performance reporting.

Recommendation
lt is recommended input VAT is recognised 
on all transactions at the municipality. 
Further a senior official should review 
the general ledger monthly to ensure 
that transactions are being recorded 
accurately. As this is a sample, we also 
recommend a review of all transactions 
processed for the similar finding.

Management response
Finding is noted, however:

• Cheque 16584 (Mzansi Africa Civils) was 
correctly processed and the VAT input was
correctly accounted for.

• Cheque 16643; 16657 and 16656 were 

all correctly processed as well. There were
reversed at year end and processed 
as part of trade payables as there were 
outstanding at year end and were only 
cashed in July 2013.

• Cheque 16215 and 16650 we agree 
with the finding. These cheques were not 
correctly accounted in the general ledger, 
however the VAT input in relation to them 
was claimed correctly as the process of 
claiming VAT is done separately from the 
system.

Name: Mr JV Nkosi
Position: Chief Financial Officer
Date: 24 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
This finding was raised because the 
VAT is not recorded on even us. Audit is 
aware that a consultant performs the VAT 
function for the municipality and submits 
the required returns. For completeness, 
the VAT transactions processed by the 
consultant needs to be captured onto
even us. Management comments are 
accepted and this will be followed up 
at the next audit. As VAT is an area that 
needs improvement, this will remain. as an 
annexure c finding, so it can be
tracked via the action plan so 
improvements can be better monitored.

Cheque Number Suppliers detaials Amount per invoice Vat amount incorrectly classified 

16643 Kwambo Build IT 35125.31 4917.54

Mansi Africa Civils 41093.39 5754.07

16215 UmvuzoGeneral Trading and Services 1275.00 178.00

16650 Avis car rental 11787.98 1641.35

16657 Hamashe Investments (PTY) Ltd 10175.44 1424.56

16656 Ziphizindlovu Trading Enterprise cc 176917.39 24768.43

45



44. Payments to suppliers are not within 
30 days

Audit finding
In terms of the paragraph 65(2)(e) of the 
Municipal Finance Management Act, (Act 
No. 56 of 2003),

“The accounting officer of a municipality 
must take all reasonable steps to ensure 
that all money owing by municipality be 
paid within 30 days of receiving of the 
relevant invoice or statements unless 
prescribed for certain categories of 
expenditure.”

During the audit it was discovered that the 
following payments in the table below were 

not made within 30 days.

Payments not made within 30 days could 
result in non compliance with legislation.

Internal control deficiency
The municipality should implement controls 
over daily and monthly processing and 
reconciling of expenditure transactions.

Recommendation
The chief financial officer should ensure 
that payments are made within the 30 
days period envisaged by the MFMA. 
Furthermore the municipality should date 
stamp all invoices when
received.

Management response
Finding is noted, controls will be put in 
place to ensure that payments to suppliers 
are made with 30 days of receipt of invoice 
or statement.

Name: Mr JV Nkosi
Position: Chief Financial Officer
Date: 24 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are accepted and 
this will be followed up at the next audit. As 
SCM is an area that needs improvement, 
this will remain as an annexure c finding, 
so it can be tracked via the action plan so 
improvements can be better monitored.

Cheque Number Suppliers detaials Amount

16053 Haig's Mower & Chainsaw Centre 18 993.10
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45. Shortfalls on the suppliers database

Audit finding
In terms of section 13(c)(iii) of the Supply 
Chain Management Regulations,

“Prospective providers are required to 
declare whether the prospective supplier 
or any person connected with the 
prospective supplier is employee by the 
state, when applying for registration on
the list.”

Furthermore, section 112U) of the 
Municipal Finance Management Act, 
Act No.56 of 2003 requires supply chain 
management policy to comply with 
prescribed framework- “the supply chain 
management must be fair, equitable, 
transparent, competitive and cost-effective 
and comply with a prescribed regulatory 
framework for municipal supply chain 
management which must cover at least the 
following:

U) Compulsory disclosure of any conflict of 
interest prospective contractors may have 
in specific tenders and the exclusion of 
such prospective contractors from these 
tenders or bids.“

Contrary to the requirements of section 
112 U) of the MFMA, the audit of the 
suppliers information and staff interests in 
suppliers revealed the following exceptions 
which will affect the fair, equitable, 
transparent, competitive and cost-effective 
procurement process.

There was a lack of proper control over the 
supplier database by SCM officials and 
chief financial officer.

Internal control deficiency
The suppliers database is not reviewed 
regularly to clear invalid entries and 
update suppliers records and employees 
interests.

Recommendation
The accounting officer must review 
the suppliers database investigate the 
exceptions and update the supplier 
database accordingly to ensure that only 
valid records are kept by the municipality.

Management response
Finding is noted. Management will 
implement processes and controls to 
ensure that information on
our database is accurate.

Name: Mr JV Nkosi
Position: Chief Financial Officer
Date: 24 October 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments are noted and 
will be included in the management report 
until cleared. As SCM is an area that 
needs improvement, this will remain as an 
annexure c finding, so it can be tracked 
via the action plan so improvements can 
be better monitored.

CAATs file Names Content Number of Records

Duplicate Suppliers Information 
More than one supplier with the same address/telephone 

number/bank account/VAT number/Entity number 
129

PO Box suppliers Supplier with no physical address-only PO Box numbers 136

Interest employees
Employee and political office-bearers who are directors/

members of private companies or close corporations that do 
business with the state institutions other that the municipality

2

Suppliers Cipro Deregistered entities on supplier database 59

Supplier Cipro 2
Suppliers whose company type is not known

are on the supplier database 
32

Duplicate telephone Number Suppliers with duplicate telephone numbers 184
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Indicates formulas.

Indicates information on which the 
assessment of the financial indicators in the 
management report is based. 

50 315 485

-51 538 741

22,881,319

12,097,901

12 158 000

9 398 870

102.40%

77.30%

52.9%

50,315,485

-51,538,741

22,881,319

12,097,901

12 158 000

9 398 870

Final approved operating expenditure budget

Under/(over) spending of the final approved 
operating expenditure budget
Note: Over-spending must be captured as a negative

Conditional grants received

Under/(over) spending of conditional
grants received
Note: Over-spending must be captured as a negative

Final approved capital budget

Under/(over) spending of the final approved capital 
budget
Note: Over-spending must be captured as a negative

Percentage over spending of the final approved 
operating expenditure budget

Percentage under spending of the final approved 
capital budget

Percentage under-spending of conditional grants 
received

1.1

1.2

2.1

BUDGET MANAGEMENT

GRANT MANAGEMENT

ANNExURE	D   |   FINANCIAL INDICATOR ANALYSES: MFMA 2012-13

Auditee:	Mfolozi	Municipality  -  Period-end: 30 June 2013

Financial
statement
amounts

R’000

Financial
statement
amounts

R’000

Indicator
reference

Indicator
reference

Adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Financial statement
amounts after

adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Financial statement
amounts after

adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

%

%
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9,117,458

12,097,901

137.4

9,117,458

12,097,901

Accounts payable from goods and services 
purchased on credit

Total purchases from goods and services purchased 
on credit for the year

Creditor-payment period
(Accounts payable + Total purchases x 365)

3.1

EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT

Auditee:	Mfolozi	Municipality  -  Period-end: 30 June 2013

Financial
statement
amounts

R’000

Indicator
reference

Adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Financial statement
amounts after

adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Days

5,644,302

1,196,403

63,197,917

32.6

25.7

21.2%

1.9%

5,644,302

1,196,403

63,197,917

Accounts receivable from goods and services 
rendered on credit (before impairment)

Debtors impairment provision at year-end
(In respect of accounts receivable from goods and 
services rendered on credit)

Total revenue from goods and services rendered on 
credit for the year

Debtor-collection period - before impairment (Days)
(Accounts receivable [before impairment] + Total revenue x 365)

Debtor-collection period - after impairment (Days)
(Accounts receivable [before impairment] + Total revenue x 365)

Debtors impairment provision at year-end as a 
percentage of accounts receivable from goods and 
services rendered on credit

Debtors impairment provision at year-end as a 
percentage of revenue from goods and services 
rendered on credit

4.1

4.3

4.2

4.4

REVENUE MANAGEMENT

Financial
statement
amounts

R’000

Indicator
reference

Adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Financial statement
amounts after

adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Days

%
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Auditee:	Mfolozi	Municipality  -  Period-end: 30 June 2013

Material water losses
- (As per financial statement disclosure)
- (Total of technical/real/physical losses plus non-technical/apparent/
commercial losses; i.e. portion of total input into system/volume available not 
able to be billed)

Material electricity losses
- (As per financial statement disclosure)
- (Total of technical losses plus non-technical losses; i.e. portion of total input 
into system/kWh available not able to be billed)

4.5

4.6
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63,197,917
51,538,741

6,618,235
28,070,840

72,116,948
28,686,539

78,735,183
56,757,379

63,197,917
51,538,741

6,618,235
28,070,840

72,116,948
28,686,539

78,735,183
56,757,379

Total revenue for the year
Less: Total expenditure for the year

Surplus / (deficit) for the year

Total current assets
Less: Total current liabilities

Net current assets / (liabilities)

Total non-current assets
Less: Total non-current liabilities

Net non-current assets / (liabilities)

Total assets
Less: Total liabilities

Net assets / (liabilities)

5.1

5.2

5.3

ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

Financial
statement
amounts

R’000

Indicator
reference

Adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Financial statement
amounts after

adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

11,659,176

-21,452,605

43,430,409

21,977,804

61,712,095

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

11,659,176

-21,452,605

43,430,409

21,977,804

61,712,095

0

61,602,734

109,361

0

0

61,602,734

109,361

0

0

Year-end carrying amount of the category(ies) of 
PPE that were subject to impairment
Plus: Year-end carrying amount of the category(ies) 
intangible assets that were subject to impairmen

Year-end carrying amount of investments, if subject 
to impairment
Plus: Year-end carrying amount of loan receivables 
(loans awarded), if subject to impairment
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29,368,963
56,617

0

0

29,368,963
56,617

0

0

PPE impairment provision at year-end
Plus: Intangible assets impairment provision at year-end

Investments impairment provision at year-end
Plus: Loan receivables (loans awarded) impairment 
provision at year-end

PPE and intangible assets impairment provisions 
at year-end as a percentage of the carrying amount 
of the category(ies) of PPE and intangible assets 
subject to impairment

Loan receivables (loans awarded) and investments 
impairment provisions at year end as a percentage 
of the carrying amount of investments and loans 
subject to impairment

5.4

5.5

ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Auditee:	Mfolozi	Municipality  -  Period-end: 30 June 2013

Financial
statement
amounts

R’000

Indicator
reference

Adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Financial statement
amounts after

adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

29,422,580

0

0

0

29,422,580

0

47.7%

-

%
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Auditee:	Mfolozi	Municipality  -  Period-end: 30 June 2013

845,719

10,185,405

51,538,741

12,097,901

0

0

845,719

10,185,405

51,538,741

12,097,901

Cash and cash equivalents I (bank overdraft) at year-end
Note: Bank overdraft must be captured as a negative

Net cash flows for the year from operating activities
Note: Negative cash flows must be captured as a negative

Operating expenditure

Unspent conditional grants received at year-end

Long term employee benefit obligations

Cash and cash equivalents as a percentage of operating 
expenditure

Creditors as a percentage of cash and cash equivalents

Percentage by which unspent conditional grants 
received exceeds cash available at year-end

Current liabilities as a percentage of net cash inflows for 
the year from operating activities

Long-term debt as a percentage of net cash inflows for 
the year from operating activities

Employee benefit obligation as a percentage of net cash
inflows for the year from operating activities

1.6%
1078.1%

1330.5%

-275.6%

-281.6%

0.0%

6.3
6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.1

6.2

CASH MANAGEMENT

Financial
statement
amounts

R’000

Indicator
reference

Adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

Financial statement
amounts after

adjustments for
material 

uncorrected
misstatements

R’000

%
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1   |   Forward by the Mayor

It is my pleasure to present the Annual 
Report which comprises the Annual 
Performance Report for the year ended 
30 June 2013, as required in terms of 
section 121 (1) of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act No. 56 of 2003 and 
Section 46 of the Municipal Systems Act 
No. 32 of 2000.

We have had our challenges as a new, 
smaller local authority in KZN, but in 
many respects have been at the forefront 
of municipal progress. Our Integrated 
Development Plan (IDP) has been seen by 
our residents as the policy vehicle to effect 
change, to meet needs of communities 
and to establish the infrastructures needed 
to make democracy a reality in this part of 
the country.

I have personally made it my objective 
to hold political office bearers and our 
public servants accountable; to deliver 
more and better services in a caring and 
efficient manner; to move from debate to 
effective implementation and above all to 
communicate with and to work in close 
partnership with the Mfolozi communities. 
Within the covers of this Annual Report 
are detailed actions and their costs 
to transform these ideas into realities. 
Readers will get a bird’s eye view of some 
of the many improvements which were 
carried out by my officials during the year 
under review in the pages that follow. A 
far more detailed presentation is of course 

MAYORS FORWARD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

contained in the Financial Statements 
which will receive the critical scrutiny of 
the Auditor-General for the year ended 30 
June 2013.  

In the financial year under review we 
have been able, with extremely limited 
resources to achieve most of our goals. 
Given the constraints on the revenue side 
tough decisions had to be made which 
impacted on the improvement of service 
delivery. However the economic downturn 
has severely affected businesses and the 
residents of our area. We have therefore 
had to strategize and cut costs to channel 
our limited resources to where they are 
most needed. I must emphasize that 
residents’ participation in achieving our 
goals is encouraged and is constantly 
improving.

I would like to compliment Councillors 
for the valuable contributions which they 
continue to make in identifying both ways 
and means to improve the daily lives of 
our residents and for the co-operation, 
over party political lines which we in this 
municipality continue to experience.

The staff must be complimented for their 
tireless work for the benefit of our Mfolozi 
community.

Cllr SW Mgenge 
Mayor 

Cllr SW Mgenge 
Mayor
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2   |   Message from the Municipal Manager

During the year under review which is 
2012/13 financial year, one can say that 
good performance was rendered in service 
delivery in the face of stringent budget. 
The money which was set aside for the 
provision of service delivery was well spent 
in the provision of services to the needy 
communities. The integrated development 
plan objectives were achieved to a large 
extent. 

One is optimistic that this year will also 
be as successful as the previous ones 
if not more. One also need not forget 
to state the municipality’s commitment 
to achieve clean audit report prior to 
the national target year of 2014. The 

Municipality is equally committed to a 
clean administration which upholds a very 
high level of ethics which finds expression 
in the municipality that is totally ethical and 
corruption free.  

Once again, my thanks go to all and 
sundry within all spheres of government 
and beyond, the community for which the 
municipality exists, audit committee and, 
above all, the Councillors, Management 
and Staff of the municipality who made 
it possible for us to achieve what we 
achieved as a team.

I Thank You

MAYORS FORWARD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Mr KE Gamede     
Municipal Manager
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3   |   Executive Summary 

3.1 Introduction
The purpose of the annual report is to 
provide a record of the activities of the 
municipality and its municipal entity, 
and a report on performance against 
the budget for that financial year with 
the aim of promoting accountability to 
the local community for the decisions 
made by the municipality and its entity. 
The annual performance report on the 
other hand reflects the performance of 
the municipality and its service providers  
during the financial year, comparison of 
performances of the current and previous 
financial years and measures taken to 
improve performance. 

3.2 Overview
Mfolozi Municipality is one of six 
municipalities within the District. The 
N2 national road passes through the 
Municipality which connects it to major 
towns such as Richards Bay and Durban. 
The significance of this road to the 
Municipality is that it serves as the major 
economic corridor in the area.

The municipality has an estimated 
population size of 122 889 of which 51.9% 
are women. The average population 
density is estimated at 88 people per km2. 
The Municipality is adjacent to Richards 
Bay and Empangeni Complex. Its borders 
are: the Indian Ocean to the east; Umfolozi 
River to the north; Mhlana Tribal Authority 
to west and UMhlathuze Municipality to 
the south. It is characterized by three 
geographical districts portions which 
are: coastal: Sokhulu-Mfolozi Traditional 
Authorities; Commercial Plantations along 
the N2 and Mhlana Traditional Authority to 
the west.

The Mfolozi Municipal Area comprises a 
long flat coastal plain rising gently from the 
coast towards the west where it reaches a 
height of approximately 200 masl (metres 
above mean sea-level), the highest point 
being Kwamendo in the west at 381 mast. 
The coastal plain is interspersed by high 
dunes and is further characterized by 
a number of short perennial rivers that 
originate within the area and either drain 
northwards towards the Umfolozi River or 
towards the coastal lakes in the vicinity of 
Richards Bay to the south. Two coastal 

lakes lie within the area, Lake Nhlabane 
on the coast and Lake Eteza towards the 
north.         
        
Mfolozi Municipality is home to the poorest 
of the poor, which is evident in the average 
annual household income which is R4,800 
to R9,600 (compared to an average annual 
household income of R19,200 to R38,400 
in the Ethekwini Metro).

• The population settlement trend is that 
people are generally settled in Traditional 

MAYORS FORWARD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Mfolozi Municipality is situated within the uThungulu District Municipality in the north-east of 
KwaZulu-Natal and covers an area of approximately 1,209km2.

Census 2001 CS 2007 Global Insight 2010 Census 2011

Population 106,942 118,081 121,160 122,889

Households 19,143 21,632 23,162 25,582

Av. Household 5.5 5.4 5.23 4.8
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Authority areas.

• The incidence of Absentee Household 
members (according to the UDM QOLS 
2009) in Mfolozi is 22, 26% which is higher 
than the uThungulu District average 
of 17%. This is indicative of people 
temporarily leaving the Mfolozi Municipal 
area for employment purposes. Mfolozi 
has a very youthful population, accounting 
for 48.4% or 58,671 persons.

• This has a implication in terms of types 
of services that might be needed to cater 
for this age group which impacts on the 
Municipal budgeting thereof.

• There has been a significant increase 
in the number of pensioner headed 
households since 2007 from 32.43% 
to 46.84%. Some reasons for this trend 
could be (1) parents working elsewhere, 
(2) deceased parents (3) the traditional 
culture of extended families as well as 
the (4) effects of migrant labour. In 2001, 
30% of the total adult population in the 
Municipality had no formal education. 
This percentage has decreased to 24% in 
2010. 

• The incidence of HIV/Aids seems to have 
stabilized, this is in line with the notion 
that the disease in reaching maturity. The 
incidence of HIV/Aids reached its highest 
level in 2004, whereafter a decrease is 
observed. This could also be the result 
of the positive impact that the distribution 
of anti-retroviral medication had in the 
Municipal Area.

3.3 Vision, Mission and Core Values
Councillors, Management and Municipal 
Officials should promote an economical 

sound municipality with available 
infrastructure and empower people, 
protect environment and demonstrate 
good governance in leadership. 

The Municipal Vision is as follows:

TO PROVIDE 
SERVICE DELIVERY 
THAT CREATES A 
BETTER LIFE FOR 
ALL PEOPLE OF 
MFOLOZI
The Municipal Mission is as follows:

 Mfolozi Municipality will deliver services 
that will meet the needs of its people
through:

• Promoting social and economic 
development;
• Sustainable and affordable service 
delivery;
• Promoting itself as a preferred tourist 
destination;
• Establishing itself as an investor-friendly 
industrial node; and
• Effective and efficient leadership.

In order to achieve its Vision and Mission, 
the Mfolozi Municipality will uphold the 
Values of:

• Respect;
• Integrity
• Innovation;
• Excellence;
• Responsiveness; and
• Accountability.

3.4 Economic Analysis
The only town of Mfolozi ie KwaMbonambi 
is situated between Mtubatuba and 
Richards Bay approximately 33 km north 
of Richards Bay. A significant portion of 
Mfolozi formed part of the former KwaZulu 
which tended to be neglected in terms 
of economic development. Most of the 
area of the municipality is also rural and 
associated with a lack of development, 
poverty and poor service provision.

The size of the economics of the local 
municipalities of uThungulu is shown in the 
table below. The information indicates that 
the 2010 size of the Mfolozi Municipality 
was R 2 288million. The economy of 
Mfolozi makes up 12% of the economy 
of uThungulu and is relatively small 
compared to that of uMhlathuze which is 
R13 368 million.

Mfolozi. economy is only 18% of that of 
uMhlathuze and 12% of that of uThungulu 
Municipality. The relative sizes of the 
different local municipalities are shown 
in Table 1. The table also indicates 
that the size of the Mfolozi is the 3rd 
largest in the district being exceeded by 
uMhlathuze and uMlalazi. The economies 
of Mthonjaneni, Nkandla and Ntambanana 
are all significantly smaller than that of 
Mfolozi.

MAYORS FORWARD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



Table 1    Gross Value Added at Basic Price

The relatively large size of the economy of uMhlathuze, and also the growth of the uMhlathuze’s economy compared to the other 
municipalities. Mfolozi grew during the period of 1995 to 2010. Figure 4 shows the percentage year-on-year growth of the Mfolozi 
economy. It is also evident that the economic cycles through which the municipality progressed between 1995 and 2010. The year 1999 
was a low point on the economic calendar of the municipality and then also 2009. The high growth points of the economy growth were 
1996 and 2007/8. The economic growth pattern of the economy shows the same trend as that of the national and international economies. 
This is an important fact as it indicated that there little growth taking place in the rest of the uThungulu district.

Table 2    Year on Year Economic Growth per Municipality  
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Year 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Total uThungulu 17844 18706 19884 20640 19548 20371 

Mbonambi Local Municipality 1662 1830 2054 2273 2288 2373

uMhlathuze Local Municipality 12473 12910 13567 13816 12736 13368

Ntambanana Local Municipality 727 797 879 967 982 1005

uMlalazi Local Municipality 1987 2145 2315 2466 2433 2494

Mthonjaneni Local Municipality 523 521 528 542 516 525

Nkandla Local Municipality 472 503 541 576 594 605

Year 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Total uThungulu 1.04 1.04 1.04 1.03 1.04 1.05 1.06 1.04 0.95 1.04

Mbonambi Local Municipality 1.03 1.04 1.08 1.08 1.09 1.10 1.12 1.11 1.01 1.04

uMhlathuze Local Municipality 1.05 1.04 1.03 1.02 1.04 1.04 1.05 1.02 0.92 1.05

Ntambanana Local Municipality 1.05 1.05 1.06 1.06 1.06 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.02 1.02

uMlalazi Local Municipality 1.02 1.02 1.03 1.03 1.04 1.08 1.08 1.07 0.99 1.03

Mthonjaneni Local Municipality 1.03 1.03 1.03 1.01 1.01 1.00 1.01 1.03 0.95 1.02

Nkandla Local Municipality 1.05 1.03 1.05 1.04 1.07 1.07 1.07 1.07 1.03 1.02

Source: Quantec, 2012

Source: Quantec, 2012



Figure 1: Change in the economic sizes

Figure 1: Change in the economic sizes

Figure 1: Change in the economic sizes
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Source: Quantec, 2012

Source: Quantec, 2012

Source: Quantec, 2012
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2.1   |   Governance Structures

2.2.1 Political Governance Structures
In terms of political governance structures which were in place during 2012/13 financial year, they were as follows: 

Number of Councillors at Mfolozi Municipality

African National Congress 
(ANC)

Inkatha Freedom Party
(IFP)

National Freedom Party
(NFP) Totals

Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female

12 5 7 3 2 1 21 9

17 10 3 30

Executive Committee 
During the year under review, the 
municipality had an effective and 
functional Executive Committee. The 
Executive Committee is the principal 
committee of Council for the municipality. 
The Executive Committee receives reports 
from other committees of Council, which 
must then forward these reports together 
with their recommendations to Council 
when it cannot dispose of the matter in 
terms of its delegated powers.

Council W
During the year under review, the 
municipality had an effective and 
functional Council. The municipal Council 
ensured to strive within its capacity to 
achieve the objectives as set out in Section 
152 of the Constitution which indicates that 
Council must annually review:
 
• The needs of the community; 
• The priorities to meet those needs; 
• Its processes in involving the community; 
• Its organisational and delivery 
mechanism for meeting the needs of the 

community
• Its overall performance in achieving the 
objectives as set out in Section 152 of the 
Constitution.

2.1.2 Administrative Governance 
Structures
In terms of the administrative governance 
structures which were in place during 
2012/13 financial year, it was structured as 
per the following departments:

• Management Committee; 
• Corporate Services; 
• Technical Services; and
• Finance; services 

2.1.3 Human Resources Governance

2.2 Public Accountability And 
Participation

2.2.1 Public Accountability

It appears in Chapter 4 of the Municipal 
Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000, a municipality 
must encourage and create conditions for 

the local community to participate in the 
affairs of the municipality, including in the 
preparation implementation and review of 
its Integrated Development Plan. In this 
context, the municipality has committed 
to a participatory process of IDP Review 
whereby the community will play a 
meaningful role. 2. Mechanisms for Public 
Participation

The following mechanisms were used for 
participation:

IDP Representative Forum
This forum represented all stakeholders 
and inclusive as possible and met the 
action programme.

Media
Local newspapers circulating within the 
municipal area of jurisdiction were also 
used to inform on progress and issuing 
public notices on the IDP processes. The 
local / community Radio Stations were also 
utilised for publicity purposes. 
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DATE Venue Time

06 October 2012  Sulpine Area 09h00 am

13 October 2012 Sabhuza Area 09h00 am

20 October 2012 Nkiyankiya Area 09h00 am

27 October 2012 Ntuthunga 1 Area 09h00 am

03 November 2012 Thukwini Area 09h00 am

10 November 2012 Nhlabane Area 09h00 am

17 November 2012 Siyokomani-Ntuthunga2 Area 09h00 am

Visit to Tribal Authorities
The Mfolozi Municipality realises the 
importance that traditional leadership plays 
in promoting development in the municipal 
area. It is for this reason that meetings with 
the Amakhosi were set up.

Ward Committees and Community 
Development Workers 
As formal structures established in terms 
of the Municipal Structures Act, the Ward 

2.2.2 IDP Alignment 
Alignment between the province and the 
municipality occured at the UThungulu 
IDP Representative Forum. The process 
was intended to integrate the plans, 
programmes and budgets of the Provincial 
Sector Departments into the Municipal IDP. 

In terms of the alignment between the 
district and local municipality, alignment 
at this level was co-ordinated at the 
uThungulu District Municipality IDP 
Steering Committee. The main function of 
the Committee was to monitor progress 
in the various review processes and to 
ensure agreement between the district 
and the local municipality in terms of the 
framework plan.

Committees and Ward Councillors were 
used as a link between the municipality 
and communities, to obtain information on 
any other information on progress on the 
IDP implementation. 

Road Shows 
The Mfolozi IDP process for 2012/2013 
was aligned with the UThungulu IDP 
process as far as the roadshows 
are concerned in order to eliminate 

In terms of alignment at the local 
municipalities, the Municipal Manager 
/ IDP Manager with the support of the 
IDP Steering Committee ensured that all 
the role-players performed their duties. 
Performance in terms of expected roles 
and responsibilities were monitored 
at the Steering Committee meetings 
and corrective measures were taken to 
address unsatisfactory performance. The 
alignment with other border municipalities 
i.e Mhlathuze, Ntambanana, Mtubatuba 
and Hlabisa was strengthened. 

2.3 Corporate Governance    

2.3.1 Municipal Website 
During the year under review, the 
municipality had a functional website with 

duplication. The first round of roadshows 
was organised to determine the key 
development issues and priorities of the 
communities are. The second round of 
roadshows was undertaken during the 
public comment period where the draft IDP 
& Budget was presented and comments 
thereon discussed.

the information required to be made in 
public in terms of the Municipal Systems 
Act and Municipal Finance Management 
Act.  

2.3.2 Municipal Oversight Committees 

Audit Committee 
During the financial year under review, 
the Municipality had a functional Audit 
Committee as required in terms of section 
166(6)(a) of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act 56 of 2003. The Audit 
Committee had seven meetings during 
2012/13 financial year. 
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The analysis of the 2012/13 performance information is aligned to the local government strategic agenda 
as per the following Key Performance Areas:

KPA 1: Municipal Transformation and Organizational Development

KPA 2: Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Investment

KPA 3: Local Economic Development

KPA 4: Municipal Financial Viability and Management

KPA 5: Good Governance and Public Participation

KPA 6: Cross-Cutting Issues

Conclusion
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KPA	1   |   Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development

SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE

Performance Management System

Table 1    Implementation on PMS implementation in municipalities - 2012/13

Table 2    Linkage between IDP and SDBIP

Table 3    Filling of Section 54/6 Managers posts 

Municipality

Does the 
municipality 

have a 
PMS Policy 
Framework 
developed /

reviewed 
and adopted 
by Council 

(State date of 
adoption)

Did the 
municipality 

review/
develop its 

IDP and 
engaged 
with the 

community in 
the process

Is the 
municipality’s  

adopted 
IDP linked to 

SDBIP?

No of 
Section 54/6 
Performance 

contracts 
signed?

No of 
Section 54/6 
managers 

with signed 
Performance 
Agreements?

Is the 
municipality’s 
PMS audited 
by an Internal 

Auditor for 
functionality 

and legal 
compliance?

Has the 
municipality 
Appointed 

Performance 
Audit 

Committee 
(PAC)

Did the 
municipality 

submit  
previous 

year’s council 
oversight 
report and 

made public

No of 
quarterly 

performance 
reports 

submitted

Has the  
municipality 
cascaded 

PMS to lower 
levels

State reasons 
for non-

compliance of 
any of these 
components

Y/N No Yes Yes 0 0 No Yes No 0 No

Senior 
Managers 

were 
appointed 

in an Acting 
Capacity.

Date

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

IDP Framework/ 
Process Plan 
Approved)

IDP adopted and 
Submitted

Is the IDP aligned 
to SDBIP

IDP Framework/ 
Process Plan 

Approved
IDP adopted and 

Submitted
Is the IDP aligned 

to SDBIP
IDP Framework/ 

Process Plan 
Approved

IDP adopted and 
Submitted

Is the IDP aligned 
to SDBIP

Y/N Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

Date 27/08/09 27/08/09 27/08/09 30/08/2012 30/08/2012 30/08/2012

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Reasons for vacancies

No of posts 
approved

No of posts 
filled

No of 
vacancies

No of posts 
approved

No of posts 
filled

No of 
vacancies

No of posts 
approved

No of posts 
filled

No of 
vacancies

Municipal Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 Not applicable

Chief Financial Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 Not applicable

Technical 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 Recruitment process not 
finalized

Corporate Services 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 Not applicable

Manager in Mayors Office 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Recruitment process not 
finalised

Community Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 Not applicable

TOTAL 4 4 4 4 4 4 1 1 1 Recruitment not finslised
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Table 4    Disciplinary processes against Section 54/6 Managers

Compliance with the EEA
Table 5    Women appointments – Section 54/6 Managers

Table 6    Employment of people with disabilities (The entire Organization)

Table 7    Employment of employees that are aged 35 or younger (Whole Organization)

Table 8    Development and Implementation of specific HR policies and systems per municipality – 2012/13

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

No of reported 
cases

No of pending 
cases

No of resolved 
cases

No of reported 
cases

No of pending 
cases

No of resolved 
cases

No of reported 
cases

No of pending 
cases

No of resolved 
cases

Number 0 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A None None None 

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

No. of Section 
54/6 posts 
approved

Women 
appointed in 
Section 54/6 

posts

No of vacancies 
for women 

Section 56/7 
Managers

No. of Section 
54/6 posts 
approved

Women 
appointed in 
Section 54/6 

posts

No of vacancies 
for women 

Section 54/6 
Managers

No. of Section 
54/6 posts 
approved

Women 
appointed in 
Section 54/6 

posts

No of vacancies 
for women 

Section 54/6 
Managers

Number 4 2 0 2  2 0 2 2 0

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Total no. of 
people  with 
disabilities

No. of Section 
54/6 Mangers 

with disabilities

No of vacancies 
for people with 

disabilities

Total no. of 
people  with 
disabilities

No. of Section 
54/6 Mangers 

with disabilities

No of vacancies 
for people with 

disabilities

Total no. of 
people  with 
disabilities

No. of Section 
54/6 Mangers 

with disabilities

No of vacancies 
for people with 

disabilities

Number 1 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Total approved 
posts

No of posts 
occupied by 

staff aged 35 or 
younger

% of posts 
occupied by 

staff aged 35 or 
younger

Total approved 
posts

No of posts 
occupied by 

staff aged 35 or 
younger

% of posts 
occupied by 

staff aged 35 or 
younger

Total approved 
posts

No of posts 
occupied by 

staff aged 35 or 
younger

% of posts 
occupied by 

staff aged 35 or 
younger

Number and 
percentage 77 27 35% 91 33 36% 91 34 37%

Municipality

Recruitment and selection 
policy Skills Development Plan EE Plan HRM and HRD policies

Reviewed /
Developed Approved Implemented Reviewed /

Developed Approved Implemented Reviewed /
Developed Approved Implemented Reviewed /

Developed Approved Implemented

Yes/No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Date September 
2011

October 
2011

January
2012

April
2012

June
2012

July
2013

October 
2011

February 
2012

March
2012

October 
2011

February 
2012

July
2013
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Section 139 interventions
Table 10    Has the municipality been put under section 139 interventions. If YES, which year(s)

Table 9    Workplace Skills Plans submitted by municipalities

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Y/N No No No

Year

Management level municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Total No of staff 
approved No. of staff trained Total No of staff 

approved No. of staff trained Total No of staff 
approved No. of staff trained

Councillors

Mfolozi

30 - 30 28 30 16

Senior Management level 4 2 4 2 4 3

lower level employees 47 10 50 30 57 8

Technicians and professional 14 7 15 6 15 12

TOTAL 90 19 99 38 106 39
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1.1 Challenges
No Performance Management System in place

The Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan not aligned to the Municipal IDP

1.2 Measures taken to improve performance
Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan was developed departmentally taking into cognisance the deliverable in the Integrated 
Development Plan for 2013/2014 financial year.

1.3 Recommendations
Performance Management System to be prepared internally to ensure ownership, proper implementation, monitoring and accountability
To review the meeting of the Performance Audit Committee to be in line with the PMS Target dates.  

KPA	1   |   Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development
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Table 11    Access to basic services 

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Housing Water
(on site) Sanitation Refuse 

removal
Electricity
(in house) Housing Water

(on site) Sanitation Refuse 
removal

Electricity 
(in house) Housing Water

(on site) Sanitation Refuse 
removal

Electricity 
(in house)

v

No. of hh N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Target

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Housing Backlogs           =      55.6% of 184 506 households - 2007 STATS SA Community Survey
Refuse Removal Backlog           =      55.6% of 184 506 households - 2007 STATS SA Community Survey

Table 12    Blue Drop Water Certification per province (Applicable to Water Service Authorities)

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Did the municipality receive 
a blue drop certification? If not, state the reason Did the municipality receive 

a blue drop certification? If not, state the reason Did the municipality receive 
a blue drop certification? If not, state the reason

Y/N and reason N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Table 13    Total grants, donations and contributions received per municipality

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Allocations Amount spent % spent Allocations Amount spent % spent Allocations Amount spent % spent

Rands and 
percentages MIG 

Programme
R12 035 000.00 R13 279 089.00 110.34% 14 475 000.00 14 102 406.00 97.42% 17 558 000.00 9 026 276.00 51.41%

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Allocations Amount spent % spent Allocations Amount spent % spent Allocations Amount spent % spent

Rands and 
percentages 

RBIG Programme
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Allocations Amount spent % spent Allocations Amount spent % spent Allocations Amount spent % spent

Rands and 
percentages-

MASSIFICATION 
Programme

KPA	2   |   Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Investment
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Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Reviewed /
developed  

indigent policies
Indigent policy 
implemented

Indigent registers 
in place

Reviewed /
developed  

indigent policies
Indigent policy 
implemented

Indigent registers 
in place

Reviewed /
developed  

indigent policies
Indigent policy 
implemented

Indigent registers 
in place

Yes/No No No No No No No No No No

Date

Indigent Policy implementation with regard to provision of free basic services
Table 14    Indigent Policies and Registers
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Table 15    Blue Drop Water Certification per province (Applicable to Water Service Authorities)

Municipality

Electricity Water Sanitation Refuse removal
No of indigent 
households 

receiving free 
service

Units per household 
(kwh)

No of indigent 
households 

receiving free 
service

Units per household
(kl)

No of indigent 
households 

receiving free 
service

Units/ R value pm 
per household

No of indigent 
households 

receiving free 
service

Units/ R value pm 
per household

Number of H/
holds and units

MIG 2012/2013
Ward 01 - Hlanzeni Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 02 - Mtwana Creche 920 000.00
Ward 02 - Ezidonini Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 03 - Nkunzebomvu Multy Purpose Centre 1 900 000.00
Ward 04 - Amala Phansi Community Hall 1 400 000.00
Ward 05 - Nzalabantu Community Hall 1 400 000.00
Ward 06 - Mzingazi Bus shelter 56 800.00
Ward 06 - Busybee Bus shelter 56 800.00
Ward 06 - Mathayini Sus shelter 56 800.00
Ward 06 - Mzingazi Library / Computer Lab 840 000.00
Ward 07 - Mankayiyane Road (per km) 907 500.00
Ward 07 - Hlanganimhlathi Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 08 - Ntobozi Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 08 - Maduna Creche 920 000.00
Ward 09 - Mankayiyane pension Payout Shelter 915 000.00
Ward 09 - Makheni Small Plavaround 250 000.00
Ward 09 - Mzini Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 10 - Gegede Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 11 - Mdongadlovu Road (per km) 1 044 259.96
Ward 12 - Killers Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 12 - Sabhuza Road Phase 2 1 100 000.00
Ward 13 - Novunula Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 14 - Thuthukhane Creche 920 000.00
Ward 14 - Nzalabantu - Upgrade Sportsfield with Combi Court 200 000.00
Ward 15 - Soya Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 15 - Pathane/Mazawula 02 Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 15 - Shwashweni Small Playground 250 000.00
Ward 15 - Bhubhubhu Small Playground 250 000.00
PMU 5% top Slice 879 400.00
TOTAL 2012/2013 17 016 559.96

2.1 2012/13 MIG Projects
Municipal Services

Challenges and Recommendations / Action Plans

KPA	2   |   Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Investment
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2.2 2012/13 Expenditure 

Figures in Rand                  2013  2012

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

KPA	2   |   Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Investment

SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE



70

2.2 2012/13 Expenditure 

Figures in Rand                    2013    2012

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Reasons for no strategy

in placeLED strategy 
reviewed/ 
developed

LED strategy 
approved

LED strategy 
implemented

LED strategy 
reviewed/ 
developed

LED strategy 
approved

LED strategy 
implemented

LED strategy 
reviewed/ 
developed

LED strategy 
approved

LED strategy 
implemented

Yes/No No No No No No No No No No Legislation requirements 
not met

Date
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Table 16    Municipalities with adopted and implemented LED strategies 

KPA	3   |   Local Economic Development

Table 17    Capacity of municipalities to implement LED

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Number 01 01 01 01 01 01

Table 18    Number of jobs created per Municipality

Table 18    EPWP implementation per Municipality (2012/13)

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

No. of jobs 
created through 

EPWP

No. of jobs 
created through 

CWP

No. of jobs 
created for

Co-operatives

No. of jobs 
created through 

EPWP

No. of jobs 
created through 

CWP

No. of jobs 
created for

Co-operatives

No. of jobs 
created through 

EPWP

No. of jobs 
created through 

CWP

No. of jobs 
created for

Co-operatives

Number 120 50 150 115 65 163 150 50 170

Municipality Person-years of work 
including training Person-Years of training Gross number of work 

opportunities created No of youth No of women No  of people with 
disabilities

Number and percentage None None None None None None

3.1 Challenges
Most of jobs created by the municipality were temporal due to the fact that most of the jobs were created in construction, and the 
construction companies retrench and hire as they wish.

3.2 Measures taken to improve performance
We are engaging contractors through our LED forums where we discuss these issues.

3.3 Recommendations
More capacity must be given to municipalities in terms of LED Strategy implementation plans this will be done by Manager LED.

SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE



Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Water & 
Electricity

Sewerage & 
Refuse Housing Other Water & 

Electricity
Sewerage & 

Refuse Housing Other Water & 
Electricity

Sewerage & 
Refuse Housing Other

Rands

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Budget approved Revenue Expenditure Budget approved Revenue Expenditure Budget approved Revenue Expenditure

Rands 73 417 349.00 50 270 895.00

Capital Expenditure by Municipality
Table 20    Performance against budget by municipalities

Financial Viability
Table 23    Outstanding debt and debt management
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Table 24    Development of Revenzue Enhancement Strategy

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Strategy 
Reviewed /
developed

Strategy 
implemented

Has the 
municipality’s 

Revenue 
improved?

Strategy 
Reviewed /
developed

Strategy 
implemented

Has the 
municipality’s 

Revenue 
improved?

Strategy 
Reviewed /
developed

Strategy 
implemented

Has the 
municipality’s 

Revenue 
improved?

Yes/No

Date

4.1 Challenges
4.2 Measures taken to improve performance
4.3 Recommendations

SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE

Table 21    Total grants, donations and contributions received

Table 22    A-G Opinion

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Total donations, 
grants and 

contributions 
available

Total spent % expenditure
Total donations, 

grants and 
contributions 

available
Total spent % expenditure

Total donations, 
grants and 

contributions 
available

Total spent % expenditure

Rands and 
percentage

Municipality
Audit Opinion   |   2010/11 Audit Opinion   |   2011/12 Audit Opinion   |   2012/13

Unqualified Qualified Disclaimer Adverse Unqualified Qualified Disclaimer Adverse Unqualified Qualified Disclaimer Adverse

X X X X



Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Anti-corruption 
Plan compiled

Has Council 
adopted the Anti-
corruption Plan

Anti-corruption 
Plan 

implemented
Anti-corruption 
Plan compiled

Has Council 
adopted the Anti-
corruption Plan

Anti-corruption 
Plan 

implemented
Anti-corruption 
Plan compiled

Has Council 
adopted the Anti-
corruption Plan

Anti-corruption 
Plan 

implemented

Number 2 Lack of housing Seek the COGTA  
involvement 2 Lack of Funding Seek the District 

Support 3 Lack of funding
Effective 

implementation 
of the capital 

projects 
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Table 25    Functionality of Ward Committees

Table 26    Total number of deployed CDW’s per municipality  

Table 26    Total number of deployed CDW’s per municipality  

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

No. of functional Ward  
Committees

% of functional Ward  
Committees

No. of functional Ward  
Committees

% of functional Ward  
Committees

No. of functional Ward  
Committees

% of functional Ward  
Committees

Number and 
percentage 15 75% 15 80% 150 150

Municipality
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

No of CDW posts approved No of CDW’s
deployed to wards No of CDW posts approved No of CDW’s

deployed to wards No of CDW posts approved No of CDW’s
deployed to wards

Number 7 6 7 6 7 6

Table 27    Good governance indicators as at June 2013

Municipality

Meetings convened
Number of 

meetings where 
quorum was not 

achieved

Yes/No Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y N
Date

if applicable

All adm
in delegations 

adopted

S59 M
SA D

elegations 
adopted

Roles of C
om

m
ittees and 

Political O
ffice Bearers 

defined M
unicipal

M
anagem

ent

ID
P 

Representatives

C
ouncil

Executive 
m

ayoral 
com

m
ittee

Portfolio 
C

om
m

ittee

Executive 
m

ayoral 
com

m
ittee

C
ouncil

C
ode of conduct adopted  

(C
ouncil  & staff)

C
ode com

m
unicated to 

com
m

unity

Interests of councillors 
and staff declared

C
ouncillors and staff 

m
em

bers in arrears w
ith 

m
unicipal accounts

Municipality

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Anti-corruption 
Plan compiled

Has Council 
adopted the Anti-
corruption Plan

Anti-corruption 
Plan 

implemented
Anti-corruption 
Plan compiled

Has Council 
adopted the Anti-
corruption Plan

Anti-corruption 
Plan 

implemented
Anti-corruption 
Plan compiled

Has Council 
adopted the Anti-
corruption Plan

Anti-corruption 
Plan 

implemented

Yes/No Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Date March 2011 May 2011 June 2011 October 2011 March 2012 May 2012 

Anti-corruption
Table 28    Progress on the implementation of anti-corruption strategies by municipalities 
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Challenges and concerns raised at Izimbizo meetings
Inadequate housing, Electricity and water provision.

Resolutions taken
We are engaging contractors through our LED forums where we discuss these issues.

5.1 Challenges
Lack of alignment of programmes and projects with other sector departments; and 
Effective implementation of the municipal policies.

5.2 Measures taken to improve performance
Annual review of the municipal policies; and  
Effective alignment of programmes and projects with other sector departments. 

5.3 Recommendations
Annual review of the municipal policies; and  
Effective alignment of programmes and projects with other sector departments.



4.1   |   MUNICIPAL INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

During the year under review, the municipality had a staff complement of 76. The municipal organizational structure had 94 posts of which 
18 were vacant. The analysis of the staff by gender and occupation has been undertaken. The analysis applies to the staff distribution 
excluding the new posts to be filled since gender and employment equity needed to be considered in relation to the potential candidates 
for the new positions, which is as follows:

4.2   |   GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES 

In accordance with the Employment Equity Act (No 55 of 1998), the municipality reviewed and implemented the 2012/13 Employment 
Equity Plan as required by the Employment Equity Act. The plan seeks to address the numerical goals in the terms of demographics 
within the municipality.

4.3   |   WORKPLACE SKILLS PLAN

In accordance with the Skills Development Act and kills Levy Act, municipalities have to prepare and review the Workplace Skills 
Development Plan. During 2012/13, the municipality reviewed and implemented the Workplace Skills Development Plan as required by 
the said Act. The plan seeks to address employee’s skills development, scarce skills and also skills audit of the municipality.

The municipality is registered with the Local Government Sector Education and Training Authority (LGSETA), and skills development 
relating to all levels of employees functions have been undertaken and integrated into the plan.

4.4   |   HUMAN RESOURCES GOVERNANCE

Mfolozi Municipality has developed a number of policies that deal with Human Resources Management and Human Resources 
Development. The following policies were adopted by Council for the 2012/2013 financial period:
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ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE 

Occupational Levels

Male Female
Total

A C I W A C I W

Top Management 1 1 1 1 4

Middle Management 6 2 8

Supervisor and Skilled Technical 9 1 11 21

Semi skilled 11 2 13 2 28

Elementary Occupation 5 10 15

Grand Total 33 3 37 3 76
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4.5   |   MANAGING THE WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE

4.5.1 Remuneration of Councilors
The remuneration of Councillors is determined in terms of the Remuneration of Public Office Bearer’s Act, Act No. 20 of 1998 and the 
Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, Act No. 56 of 2003.

4.5.2 Remuneration of Senior Municipal Officials
The following table shows the remuneration of senior management in the Municipality:

Councilors Amount 

Mayor

Speaker

Deputy Mayor

Executive Committee Members 

Chairperson of the MPAC 

Councilors

Total

Councilors Amount 

Municipal Manager R 357 708.00

Chief Financial Officer R 719 449.00

Head of Department: Corporate Services R 719 890.00

Head of Department: Technical Services R 719 381.00

Total

Remuneration for Councilors during 2012/2013

Remuneration of Senior Officials for 2012/2013
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The following supplementary information does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited:
   
Appendix C : Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Appendix D: Segmental analysis of Statement of Financial Performance

Abbreviations 
COID Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases
CRR Capital Replacement Reserve
DBSA Development Bank of South Africa
SA GAAP South  African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting  Practice
GRAP Generally Recognized Accounting Practice
GAMAP Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practice           
HDF Housing Development Fund
IAS International Accounting Standards
IMFO Institute of Municipal Finance Officers
IPSAS International Public Sector  Accounting Standards
ME’s Municipal Entities
MEC Member of the Executive Council
MFMA                            Municipal Finance  Management Act
MIG               Municipal Infrastructure Grant (Previously CMIP)

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the provincial legislature: 
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Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities and Approval

I am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are set out on pages 6 to 34, in terms of Section 126 (1) 
of the Municipal Finance Management Act and which I have signed on behalf of the Municipality. I certify that the salaries, allowances and 
benefits of Councilors, loans made to Councilors, if  any, and payments made to Councilors for loss of office, if any, as disclosed in note 17 
of these annual financial statements are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the 
Remuneration of Public Officer Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and Local Government’s determination in accordance with this Act.

_______________________________

K. E Gamede
Municipal Manager
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Report of the Auditor General

To the Provincial Legislature of Mfolozi Local Municipality
Report on the financial statements

______________________________________
Auditor – General
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Accounting Officer’s Report

The accounting officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2013.

1.       Review of activities
Main business and operations

The municipality is engaged in municipal services and operates principally in South Africa.

The operating results and state of affairs of the municipality are fully set out in the attached financial statements and do not in our opinion 
require any further comment.

2.       Subsequent events
Contracts for both Section 56 and 57 ( Municipal Systems Act ) managers expired after the end of the financial year. The municipal 
manager left the municipality and all those senior manager posts are occupied on an acting basis.
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Figures in Rand        Notes  2013        2012
                               Restated

Assets

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions 
Payment Received in Advance  
VAT receivable
Cash and cash equivalents  

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment  
Intangible assets  
                                                                                                                               
Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Finance Lease Obligation  
Trade and other payables  
Unspent conditional grants 
Provisions     
Total Current Liabilities  

Non- Current Liabilities
Finance Lease Obligation  
Total Liabilities
Net Assets   

Net Assets
Accumulated surplus  

Total Net Assets   

4
5
6
7

2
3

8
10
9

28

8

4 641 950
-

1 130 566
845 719

6 618 235

72 007 587
109 361

72 116 948
78 735 183

284 915
15 678 916
11 224 680

882 329
28 070 840

615 699
28 686 539
50 048 644

50 048 644
50 048 644

50 048 644

1 685 834
541 691
978 058
200 120

3 405 703

61 504 534
141 957

61 646 491
65 052 194

126 180
23 501 329

2 088 091
683 792

26 399 392

263 334
26 662 726
38 389 468

38 389 468
38 389 468

38 389 468

ANNUAL	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	30	JUNE	2013

Statement of Financial Position
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Figures in Rand        Notes  2013        2012
                               Restated

Revenue                                                                                                                                               
Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income from exchange Transactions
Service charges                                                                                                                                          
Interest earned – External investments and other  
Rentals of facilities and equipment  
License’s and Permits 
Revenue from non-exchange Transactions
Property Rates 
Fines 
Government grants & subsidies
Provision for Bad Debts Movements 

Total Revenue   

Expenses
Personnel  
Remuneration of councillors
Depreciation and amortization
Finance costs  
Provision for bad debts movement   
Repairs and maintenance    
Contracted Services 
Grant Expenditure                                                                                                                                      
General Expenses 

Total Expenditure  

Surplus for the year

13

12

14
15

16

18

13

155 850
239 503
622 811
82 303

335 320

5 229 884
13 333

56 054 730
464 183

72 116 948
63 197 917

(17 510 893)
(6 393 357)
(3 412 897)

(65 967)
-

(3 072 422)
(860 358)

-
(20 222 847)

(51 538 741)

11 659 176

330 340
218 465
416 561
119 091

-

5 064 819
133 000

59 874 582
-

61 646 491
66 156 858

(16 183 639)
(6 060 311)

(15 997 834)
(495 381)

(2 038 474)
(1 769 061)

(545 234)
(45 000)

(19 453 511)

(62 550 976)

3 605 882

ANNUAL	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	30	JUNE	2013

Statement of Financial Performance
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Figures in Rand        Notes       Accumulated    Total Net
                      Surplus      Assets  
           
Balance at 01 July 2011                                                                                                                                             

Surplus for the year
Correction of an error
                                                                                                                                          
Opening balance as previously reported  
Adjustments  
Correction of errors 

Balance at 01 July 2012 as restated

Surplus for the year
Balance at 30 June 2013

26

32 787 582

3 605 882
27 275

36 420 739

1 968 729

38 389 468

11 659 176
50 048 644

32 787 582

3 605 882
27 275

36 420 739

1 968 729

38 389 468

11 659 176
50 048 644

ANNUAL	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	30	JUNE	2013

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
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Figures in Rand        Notes  2013        2012
                               Restated

Cash Flows from operating activities
                                                                                                                                               
Receipts
Sale of goods and services
Grants
Other receipts

Total Receipts

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs

Total Payments

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Increase on the Finance Leased Assets
Other movements
Other cash item

Net cash flows from investing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

19

2
2

7

4 032 330
65 191 317

529 648

69 753 295

(23 705 713)
(35 796 210)

(65 967)

(59 567 890)

10 185 405

(10 241 547)
701 741

-
-

(9 539 806)

645 599
200 120

845 719

218 465

64 573 421

(21 675 996)
(24 851 058)

(495 381)

(47 022 435)

17 550 986

(19 724 754)
389 515

1 996 004
182 548

(17 156 687)

394 299
(194 179)

200 120

ANNUAL	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	30	JUNE	2013

Cash Flow Statements
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ANNUAL	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	30	JUNE	2013

Accounting Policies

1   |   PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

• GRAP 1  - Presentation of Financial Statement
• GRAP 2  - Cash Flow Statement
• GRAP 3  - Accounting Policies, changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
• GRAP 4  - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
• GRAP 5  - Borrowing Costs
• GRAP 9  - Revenue from  Exchange Transactions 
• GRAP 11  - Construction Contracts
• GRAP 12  - Inventories 
• GRAP 13  - Leases
• GRAP 14  - Events After the Reporting Date
• GRAP 16  - Investment Properties
• GRAP 17  - Property, Plant and Equipment 
• GRAP 19  - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
• GRAP 100  - Non –current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
• GRAP 102  - Intangible Assets
• GRAP 24  - Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
• GRAP 23  - Revenue from Non- exchange Transactions
• GRAP 104  - Financial Instruments

The Annual Financial Statements have been 
prepared on an accrual basis of accounting 
and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention unless specified otherwise. 
These Annual Financial Statements 
have been prepared in accordance with 
the Generally Recognize Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) issued by the Accounting 

1.1   |   GRAP STANDARDS SUMMARY
Applicable Standards   

1.2   |   
Presentation Currency

These Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipality .
Going concern Assumption

These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the assumption that the municipality will continue to operate as a going 
concern for at least the next 12 months.

Standards Board in accordance with 
section 122 (3) of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act, (Act No 56 of 2003).

Accounting policies for material 
transaction, evens or conditions not 
covered by the above GRAP Standards 
have been developed in accordance with 

paragraph 7,11 and 12 of GRAP3. These 
accounting policies and the applicable 
disclosures have been based on the South 
African Statements of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practices ( SA GAAP ) including 
any interpretations of such statements 
issued by the Accounting Practices Board.
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1.3   |   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are tangible 
non-current assets ( including infrastructure 
assets) that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, 
rental to others, or for administrative 
purposes, and are expected to be used 
during more than one year. Items of 
property, plant and equipment are initially 
recognized as assets on acquisition date 
and are initially recorded at cost. The cost 
of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is the purchase price and other costs 
attributable to bring the asset to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by the 
municipality. Trade discounts and rebates 
are deducted in arriving at the cost.  The 
cost also includes the necessary costs of 
dismantling and removing the asset and 
restoring the site on which it is located.
When significant components of an item 
of property, plant and equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted 
for as separate items (major components) 
of property, plant and equipment.  

Where an asset is acquired by the 
municipality for no or nominal consideration 
(i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the 
cost is  deemed to be equal to the fair 
value of that asset on the date acquired.
Where an item of property, plant and 
equipment is acquired in exchange for a 
non- monetary asset or monetary assets, 
or a combination of monetary and non- 
monetary assets, the asset acquired is 
initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the  
acquired item’s value was not determinable, 
it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of 
the asset’s) given up. Major spare parts and 
servicing equipment qualify as property, 
plant and equipment when the municipality 
expects to use then during more than one 
period. Similarly, if the major spare parts 
and servicing equipment can be sued 
only in connection with an item of property, 
plant and equipment, they are accounted 
for as property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model
Subsequent to initial recognition, items 

of property, plant and equipment are 
measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. 
Land is not depreciated as it is deemed 
to have an indefinite useful life.
Where the municipality replaces parts of 
an asset, it derecognizes the part of the 
asset being replaced and capitalizes the 
new component. Subsequent expenditure 
incurred on an asset is capitalized  
when it increases the capacity or future  
economic benefits associated with the asset.

Depreciation and Impairments
Depreciation is calculated on the 
depreciable amount , using the straight 
–line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. Components of assets 
that are significant in relation to the whole 
asset and that have different useful lives 
are depreciated separately. The annual 
depreciation rates are based on the 
following estimated average asset lives.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item                                                                                                                  Average useful life
Infrastructure Assets                                                                                        -
Infrastructure                                                                                                    -
• Roads and paving                                                                                       30
• Stormwater Drainage                                                                                20
Community
• Buildings                                                                                                       30
• Recreational facilities                                                                               20- 30
• Security – fencing                                                                                      5
• Community Halls                                                                                      30
• Libraries                                                                                                      30
• Parks and Gardens                                                                                        10
• Finance Lease Assets 
• Office Equipment                                                                                          4
Other assets
• Buildings                                                                                                         30
• Specialized  Vehicles                                                                                    10
• Other Vehicles                                                                                                  5
• Office equipment                                                                                             3-7
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• Furniture and fittings                                                                                        7-10
• Bins and containers                                                                                            5
• Specialized plant and equipment                                                                 10-15
• Other items of plant and equipment                                                            5
• Landfill Sites                                                                                                        15
• Emergency equipment                                                                                       7
• Computer equipment                                                                                      3

An intangible asset is an identifiable 
non- monetary asset without physical 
substance. Examples include computer 
software, licenses, and development costs. 
The municipality recognizes an intangible 
asset in its Statement of Financial Position 
only when it is probable that the expected 
future economic benefits or service 
potential that are attributable to the asset 
will flow to the municipality and the cost or 
fair value of the asset can be measured 
reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are 
subject to strict recognition criteria before 
they are capitalized. Research expenditure 
is never capitalized, while development 
expenditure is only capitalized to the 
extent that:
• The municipality intends to complete the  
 intangible asset for use of sale,
• It is technically feasible to complete the  
 intangible asset;
• the municipality has the resources to  
 complete the project; and 
• it is probable that the municipality will  
 receive future economic benefits or  
 service potential.

The municipality test for impairment where there is an indication that  an asset may be impaired.  An assessment of whether there is 
an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of  property, plant 
and equipment is greater than the estimated recovery amount (or recovery service amount) it is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition
Items of Property , plant and equipment are derecognized then the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or services 
potential expected from the use of the asset.  The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property , plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.4   |   INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are initially recognized 
at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired 
by the municipality for no or nominal 
consideration (i.e. a non- exchange 
transaction),
The cost is deemed to be equal to the fair 
value of the asset on the date acquired.

Where an intangible asset is acquired 
in exchange for a non- monetary asset 
or monetary assets, or a combination of 
monetary and non-monetary assets, the 
asset acquired is initially measured at fair 
value ( the cost). If the acquired item’s fair 
value was not determinable, it’s deemed 
cost is the carrying amount of the  asset’s) 
given up.

Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model
Intangible assets are subsequently carried 
at cost less accumulated amortization and 
impairments. The cost of an intangible 
asset is amortized over the useful life 
where that useful life is finite. Where the 
useful life is indefinite, the asset is not 
amortized but is subject to an annual 
impairment test.

Amortization and Impairment 
Amortization is charged so as to write off 
the cost or valuation of intangible assets 
over their estimated useful lives using 
the straight line method.   The annual 
amortization rates are based on the 
following estimated average asset lives.

The amortization period and the amortization 
method for an intangible asset with a finite 
useful life are reviewed at each reporting 
date and any changes are recognized 
as a change in accounting estimate in 
the Statement of Financial Performance.

The municipality tests intangible assets 
with finite useful lives for impairment where 
there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. An assessment of whether there 
is an indication of possible impairment is 
done at each reporting date. Where the 
carrying amount of an item of an intangible 
asset is greater than the estimated 
recoverable amount (or recoverable service 
amount), it is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount (or recoverable service 
amount) and an impairment loss is charged 
to the Statement of Financial Performance.
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Item                                                                                               Useful life
Computer software, other                                                              5 years

1.5   |   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Mfolozi Municipality has taken advantage 
of the transitional provisions permitted by 
the Accounting Standards Boards, in terms 
of Directive 4 issued in March 2009, with 
respect to the measurement of Intangible 
Assets as set out in paragraph 110 to 118.

De recognition
Intangible assets are derecognized when 
the asset is disposed of or when there are 
no further economic benefits or service 
potential expected from the use of the 
asset. The gain or loss arising on the 

disposal or retirement of an intangible 
asset is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying value and is recognized in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

Subsequent Measurement 
Financial Assets are categorized 
according to their nature as either financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss, 
held – to maturity, loans and receivables, 
or available for sale. Financial liabilities are 
categorized as either at fair value through 
profit or loss or financial liabilities carried at 
amortized cost (“other”). The subsequent 
measurement of financial assets and 
liabilities depends on this categorization 
and, in the absence of an approved GRAP 
Standard on Financial Instruments, is in 
accordance with IAS 39.

Investments
Investments, which included listed 
government bonds, unlisted municipal 
bonds, fixed deposits and short-term 
deposits invested in registered commercial 
banks, are categorized as either held 
- to - maturity where the criteria for the 
categorization are met , or as loans 
and receivables, and are measured at 
amortized cost. Where investments have 
been impaired, the carrying value is 
adjusted by the impairment loss, which 
is recognized as an expense in the 
period hat the impairment is identified. 
Impairments are calculated as being the 
difference between the carrying amount 
and the present value of the expected 
future cash flows flowing from the 
instrument. On disposal of an investment, 
the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount is 

Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value.

charged or credited to the Statement of 
Financial Performance.

Impairment of financial assets
The municipality assesses at each 
reporting date whether there is any 
indication that an asset may be impaired.  
If any such indicators exist, the 
municipality estimates the recoverable 
service amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any 
indication of impairment, the municipality 
also:
- Tests intangible assets with an indefinite 
useful life or intangible assets not yet 
available for use for impairment annually 
by comparing its carrying amount with its 
recoverable amount. This impairment test 
is performed during the annual period and 
at the same time every period.

The recoverable service amount of an 
asset or a cash –generating unit is the 
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use.

If the recoverable service amount of an 
asset is less than its  carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
to its recoverable service amount. That 
reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at 
cost less any accumulated depreciation or 
amortization is recognized immediately in 

surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation 
decrease.

An impairment loss is recognized for cash-
generating units if the recoverable service 
amount of the unit is less than the carrying 
amount of the unit. The impairment loss is 
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of 
the assets of the unit as follows:
-To the assets of the unit, pro rata on the 
basis of the carrying amount of each asset 
in the unit.
A municipality assesses at each reporting 
date whether there is any indication that 
an impairment loss recognized in prior 
periods for assets may no longer exist 
or may have decreased.  If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable service 
amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset 
attributable to a reversal of an impairment 
loss does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined had 
no impairment  loss been recognized for 
the asset in prior periods. A reversal of 
an impairment loss of assets carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation or 
amortization is recognized immediately 
in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an 
impairment loss of revalued asset is 
treated as a revaluation increase.

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables are 
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categorized as financial assets: loans and 
receivables and are initially recognized 
at fair value and subsequently carried at 
amortized cost. Amortized cost refers to 
the initial carrying amount, plus interest, 
less repayments and impairments. An 
estimated is made for doubtful receivables 
based on a review of all outstanding 
amounts at year-end.  Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor, probability that 
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 
reorganization, and default or delinquency 
in payments (more than 30 days overdue) 
are considered indicators that the trade 
receivable is impaired. Impairments are 
determined by discounting expected future 
cash flows to their present value. Amounts 
that are receivable within 12 months form 
the reporting date are classified as current.

An impairment of trade receivables is 
accounted for by reducing the carrying 
amount of trade receivables through 
the use of an allowance account, and 
the amount of the loss is recognized in 
the Statement of Financial Performance 

within operating expenses. When a trade 
receivable is uncollectible, it is written 
off. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited against 
operating expenses in the Statement of 
Financial Performance.

Provision for doubtful debts is calculated 
by categorizing the outstanding into three:
Category A are government properties 
and those who owe less the 30 
days. No provision is made for them.                                                                                                                                            
Category B are those who irregular payers, 
and the debts is more than 60 days. The 
provision is made at 25%.
Category C are bad payers and the 
provision is at 50%.

Financial Liabilities: Account Payables
Financial liabilities consist of trade 
payables and borrowings. They are 
categorized as financial liabilities held at 
amortized cost, are initially recognized at 
fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost which is the initial carrying 
amount, les repayments, plus interest.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand ( including 
petty cash ) and cash with banking   call 
deposits)  Cash equivalents are short-
term highly liquid investments, readily 
convertible into known amount of cash, 
that are held with registered banking 
institutions with maturities of three months 
or less and are subject to an insignificant 
risk of change in value. For the purposes 
of the cash flow statement, cash and 
cash equivalents comprise cash on 
hand, deposits held on call with banks, 
net of bank overdrafts. The municipality 
categorizes cash and cash equivalents 
and financial assets: Loans and 
receivables.
Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the 
facility utilized. Finance charges on bank 
overdraft are expensed as incurred.
Amounts owing in respect of bank 
overdrafts are categorized as financial 
liabilities : other financial liabilities carried 
at amortized cost.

1.6   |   LEASES
A lease is classified as a finance lease if 
it transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does 
not transfer substantially all the r4isks and 
rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and 
buildings elements, the entity assesses the 
classification of each element separately.

Finance leases – lessor
The municipality recognizes finance lease 
receivables as assets on the statement 
of financial position. Such assets are 
presented as a receivable at an amount 
equal to the net investment in the lease.

Finance revenue is recognized based on 

a pattern reflecting a constant periodic 
rate of return on the municipality’s net 
investment in the finance lease.

Finance leases – lessee
Finance leases are recognized as assets 
and liabilities in the statement of financial 
position at amounts equal to the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, 
the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding  liability 
to the lessor is included in the statement 
of financial position as a finance lease 
obligation.

The discount rate used  in calculating 
the present value of the minimum lease 
payments is the interest rate implicit in the 
lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned 
between the finance charge and reduction 
of the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during 
the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of on the remaining balance 
of the liability .

Any contingent rents are expensed in the 
period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases – lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognized as 
revenue on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging operating leases are added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
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and recognized as an expense over the 
lease term on the same basis as the lease 
revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is 
recognized as a reduction of rental 
revenue over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

The aggregate benefit of incentives 
is recognized as a reduction of rental 
expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
Income for leases is disclosed under 
revenue in cash and other cash 
equivalents.

Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognized 
as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. The difference between the 
amount recognized as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognized as 
an operating lease asset or liability.

1.7   |   INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

1.8   |   NON CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Investment property includes property 
(land or a building, or part of a buildings, 
or both land or buildings held under a 
finance lease) held to earn rentals and / or 
for capital appreciation, rather than held 
to meet service delivery objectives, the 
production or supply of goods or services, 
or the sale of assets course of operations.

At initial recognition , the municipality 
measures investment property at cost 

Non- current assets and disposal 
groups are classified as held for sale if 
their carrying amount will be recovered 
through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use. This condition 
is regarded as met only when the sale is 
highly probable and the asset (or disposal 
group ) is available for immediate sale in 
its present condition. Management must 
be committed to the sale, which should 

including transaction costs once it meets 
the  definition of investment property. 
However, where an investment property 
was acquired through a non- exchange 
transaction (i.e. where it acquired the 
investment property for non or a nominal 
value), its cost is its fair value as at the 
date of acquisition. The cost of self-
constructed investment property is the 
cost at date of completion.

be expected to qualify for recognition as 
a completed sale within one year from the 
date of classification.

Subsequent Measurement
Non- current assets held for sale (or 
disposal group) are measured at the lower 
of carrying amount and fair value less 
costs to sell.

Subsequent Measurement 
– Fair Value Model
Investment property is measured using 
the fair value model. Under the fair value 
model, investment property is carried at its 
fair value at the reporting date. Any gain or 
loss arising from a change in the fair value 
of the property is included in surplus or 
deficit for the period.

A non-current asset is not depreciated (or 
amortized) while it is classified as held for 
sale, or while it is part of a disposal group 
classified as held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributable to 
the liabilities of a disposal group classified 
as held for sale are recognized in surplus 
or deficit.
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1.9   |   PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

1.10   |   REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Provisions are recognized when the 
municipality has a present or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events, it 
is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate of the provision can 
be made. Provisions are reviewed at 
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimate. Where the effect 
is material, non-current  provisions are 
discounted to their present value using 
a  pre-tax discount rate that reflects the 

Revenue from exchange transactions refers 
to revenue that accrued to the municipality 
directly in return for services rendered / 
goods sold the value of which approximates 
and consideration received or receivable.                                                                                                
Service charges relating to refuge removal 
are recognised on a monthly basis in 
arrears by applying the approved tariff 
to each property that has improvements. 
Tariffs are determined per category 
of property usage, and are levied 

market’s current assessment of the time 
value of money, adjusted for risks specific 
to the liability (for example in the case of 
obligations for the rehabilitation of land).

The municipality does not recognize a 
contingent liability or contingent asset. 
A contingent liability is disclosed unless 
the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. 
A contingent  asset is disclosed where an 
inflow  of economic benefits is probable.

monthly based on the recorded number 
of refuge containers per property.                                                                                                                                        
Interest revenue is recognised 
on a time proportion bases.
Revenue from the rental of facilities and 
equipment is recognised on a straight – line 
basis over the term of the lease agreement.
Revenue arising from the application of the 
approved tariff of charges is recognised 
when the relevant service is rendered by 
applying the relevant gazetted tariff. This 

Future events that may effect the amount 
required to settle an obligation are reflected 
in the amount of a provision where  there is 
sufficient objective evidence that they will 
occur. Gains from the expected disposal 
of assets are not taken into account in 
measuring a provision. Provisions are not 
recognized for future operating losses. The 
present obligation under an onerous contract 
is recognized and measured as a provision.

includes the issuing of licenses and permits.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised 
when substantially at the risks and rewards 
in those goods is passed to the consumer.

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
refers to transactions where the municipality 

A provision for restructuring costs is recognized only when the following criteria over and above the recognition criteria of a provision have 
been met:
(a) The municipality has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least:
- the business or part of a business concerned,                                                                                                                                                   
- the principal locations affected;                                                                                                                                                          
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for terminating their services;
- the expenditures that  will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and

(b) The municipality has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that                                                                                              
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale or transfer, that 
is, there is a binding arrangement.
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:
• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
• the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 24.
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received revenue from another entity without 
directly giving approximately equal value 
in exchange. Revenue for non-exchange 
transactions is generally recognised to the 
extent that the related receipt or receivable 
qualifies for recognition as an asset and 
there is no liability to repay the amount.
Revenue from property rates is recognised 
when legal entitlement to this revenue 
arises. Collection charges are recognised 
when such amounts are legally enforceable. 
Penalty interest on unpaid rates is 
recognised on a time proportionate basis.
Revenue from public contributions and 
donations is recognised when all conditions 
associated with the contribution have 
been met or where the contribution is to 
finance property, plant and equipment, 
when such items of property, plant and 
equipment qualifies for recognition and 

first becomes available for use by the 
municipality. Where public contributions 
have been received but the municipality 
has not met the related conditions, a 
deferred income (liability) is recognised.
Contributed property, plant and equipment 
is recognised when such items of property, 
plant and equipment qualifies for recognition 
and become available for use by the 
municipality. Where public contributions 
have been received but the municipality 
has not met the related conditions, a 
deferred income (liability) is recognised.
Contributed property, plant and 
equipment is recognised when such 
items of property, plant and equipment 
qualifies for recognition and become 
available for use by the municipality.
Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, 
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

is based on legislated procedures, 
including those set out in the Municipal 
Finance Management Act (Act No.56 
of 2003) and is recognised when the 
recovery thereof from the responsible 
councillors or officials is virtually certain.

Grants, Transfers and Donations
Grants, transfers and donations receivable 
are recognised when the resources that 
have been transferred meet the criteria for 
recognition as an asset. A corresponding 
liability is raised to the extent that the  
grant, transfer or donation is conditional. The 
liability is transferred to revenue as and when 
the conditions attached to the grant are met.
Grants without any conditions attached are 
recognised as revenue when the asset is 
recognised.                                                       

1.11   |   INVESTMENT INCOME

1.14   |   INVESTMENT INCOME

1.12   |   BORROWING COSTS

1.13   |   RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised 
to the cost of the asset unless it is inappropriate to do so. The municipality ceases the capitalisation of borrowing costs when 
substantially all the prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete. It is considered inappropriate to capitalise 
borrowing costs where the link between the funds borrowed and the capital asset acquired cannot be adequately established. 
Borrowing costs incurred other than on qualifying assets are recognised as an expense in surplus or deficit when incurred.

The municipality provides retirement benefits for its employees and Councillors. Contributions are made to the Natal joint 
Municipal Pension Fund to fund the obligations for the payment of retirement benefits in accordance with the rules of the 
defined benefit funds it administers. Contributions are recognised as an expense in the statement of Financial Performance.

The funds are actuarially valued every three years using the discounted cash flow method. Any deficits identified 
by the actuary are recovered from participating municipalities in the form of surcharges added to the contributions 
which are recognised as an expense in the statement of Financial Performance in the year that they become payable.

Post Retirement
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1.15   |   UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

1.16   |   FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

1.17   |   IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

1.18   |   CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

1.19   |   BUDGET INFORMATION

Unauthorised expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from 
another sphere of government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in the form of a grant that is not permitted in terms of
Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003). Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of 
Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is 
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act ( Act No. 56 of 2003 ), the Municipal Systems 
Act (Act No.32 of 2000 ) , the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No.20 of 1998 ) or is in contravention of the Municipality ’s supply chain management 
policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorized expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement 
of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognized as revenue to the extent that the municipality has 
complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligating embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or 
obligations have not been met a liability is recognized.

Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget  authorizations (or equivalent), which is given 
effect through authorizing legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in 
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The annual financial statements and budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted amounts for 
the reporting period have been included in the annual financial statements.
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Figures in Rand                             2013         2012

2.  Property, plant and equipment
                                                                                                                                               

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2013                                                              

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2012                                                              

3. Intangible Assets

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Land
Buildings
Leased-Office Equipment
Infrastructure
Community
Other Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets under Construction
Total

10 404 853
7 385 974
1 174 323

18 971 627
35 273 936
7 668 773

20 497 064
101 376 550

162 978

-
(3 185 100)

(264 382)
(7 918 522)

(12 430 913)
(5 570 046)

-
(29 368 963)

(53 617)

10 404 853
4 447 073

374 174
9 603 168

15 900 810
2 688 613

18 085 842
61 504 533

10 404 853
4 200 874

909 941
11 053 105
22 843 023
2 098 727

20 497 064
72 007 587

109 361

- 
-

701 741
-
-

536 216
12 645 396
13 883 353

10 404 853
4 957 522

-
14 132 458
24 739 852
3 521 907

-
57 756 592

10 404 853
7 385 974

472 582
16 841 180
27 170 208
7 132 557

18 085 842
87 493 196

162 978

-
-
-

2 852 760
7 381 414

-
(10 234 174)

-

-
-

472 582
-

457 042
709 288

18 085 842
19 724 754

-
(2 938 901)

(98 408)
(7 238 012)

(11 269 397)
(4 443 944)

-
(25 988 662)

(21 021)

-
(246 199)
(165 974)
(680 510)

(1 161 516)
(1 126 102)

-
(3 380 301)

-
(510 449)

(98 408)
(4 529 290)
(9 296 084)
(1 542 582)

-
(15 976 813)

10 404 853
4 447 073

374 174
9 603 168

15 900 811
2 688 613

18 085 842
61 504 534

141 957

10 404 853
4 200 874

909 941
11 775 418
22 120 708

2 098 727
20 497 064
72 007 585

10 404 853
4 447 073

374 174
9 603 168

15 900 810
2 688 613

18 085 842
61 504 533

Land
Buildings
Leased-Office Equipment
Infrastructure
Community
Other Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets under Construction
Total

Land
Buildings
Leased-Office Equipment
Infrastructure
Community
Other Asssets
Other Property, Plant and Equipment #4
Total

Computer Software, Other

2013

Cost /
Valuation

Cost /
Valuation

Cost /
Valuation

Cost /
Valuation

Transfers

Additions

Carrying value

Carrying value

Additions

Opening
balance

Carrying value

Carrying value

Total

Total

Accumulated
depreciation

and 
accumulated
impairment

Accumulated
depreciation

and 
accumulated
impairment

Opening
balance

Accumulated
depreciation

and 
accumulated
impairment

Accumulated
depreciation

and 
accumulated
impairment

Depreciation

Depreciation

2012

2013 2012
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Figures in Rand                  2013        2012

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

3. Intangible Assets (continued)

4. Trade and other receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

Summary of Debtors by Customer Classification

Summary of Debtors by Customer Classification

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2012

141 957

58 490104 488

(32 596)

(21 021)

5 644 302
194 051

5 644 302
(1 574 291)

571 939
4 641 950

1 217 641
1 590 643
2 836 018

571 939
(1 574 291)

4 641 950

260 532
211 079
87 288
71 005

1 158 099
1 788 003
(765 888)
1 022 115

105 853
68 584
64 153
50 333

928 718
1 217 641
(430 515)

787 126

109 361

141 957

1 491 783
194 051

3 530 257
(2 038 474)

194 051
1 685 834

3 530 257
-
-

194 051
(2 038 474)

1 685 834

135 918
132 770
131 697
129 200

2 303 124
2 832 709

-
2 832 709

Opening
Balance

AdditionsOpening
Balance

Total

Total

Government

Amortisation

Amortisation

IndustrialConsumers

Computer Software, Other

Computer Software, Other

Trade debtors
Provision for Bad Debts
Other debtors from Exchange Transactions

Rates and Refuse Removal
Consumers
Industrial / Commercial / Farmers
National and Provincial Government
Other Debtors
Less: Provision for Bad Debts

Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
121 + days
Sub-Total
Less : Provision for Bad Debts
Total debtors by customer classification

Trade and other receivables by Category

Rates
Other Debtors
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Figures in Rand                  2013        2012

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

4. Trade and other receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions (continued)

5. Payment Received in Advance

6. VAT Receivable

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Rates and Refuse Removal Ageing:

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

419 860
285 781
252 603

2 961 511

(2 038 474)
842 071

(1 196 403)

841 769
3 950

845 719

-

1 130 566

719 873
213 506
204 855

2 632 646

(2 038 474)
-

(2 038 474)

199 706
414

200 120

541 691

978 058

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

As of 30 June 2013, trade and other receivables of R 1 196 40 (2012: R 2 837 500) were impaired and provided for.

The amount of the provision was R 1 196 403 as of 30 June 2013 (2012: R 2 038 474)

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days

Opening balance
Unused amounts received

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash and Bank
Traffic Fines Account

Payment received in advance

VAT

The VAT is payable or claimable on receipt basis. VAT is paid over or claimed at SARS only once the payment is received from debtors.
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Figures in Rand                  2013        2012

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

9. Unspent Conditional Grants

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprise of:

8. Finance

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

less: future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

The finance leases have a fixed interest rate of 9% and the average life of the leases is 24 - 60 months. There are no securities in regards 
to the leases.

Account Number / Description Bank Statement Balances
30 June 2013 30 June 2012

Cash Book Balances
30 June 2013 30 June 2012

The municipality had the following bank accounts

ABSA BANK - Account Type - 
Cheque - 40-5385-7155
ABSA BANK - Account Type - 
Housing - 40-5905-5268
ABSA BANK - Account Type - 
Traffic - 40-7854-4599
ABSA BANK - Account Type - 
Traffic - 40-6506-2322
Total

837 333

-

3 950

-

841 283

841 769

-

3 950

-

845 719

207 842

414

9 845

271

218 372

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

199 435

-

414

271

200 120

353 498
691 613

1 045 111
(144 497)

900 614

284 915
615 699
900 614

8 531 724
-
-

33 795
-

913 725
129 117
371 319
570 000
675 000

11 224 680

154 448
292 667
447 115
(57 601)
389 514

126 180
263 334
389 514

372 594
804 149
842 680

33 795
34 873

-
-
-
-
-

2 088 091

Unspent conditional grants and receipts
MIG Grant
MAP - Admin Capacity
MAP - Salgina Crescent
Housing Grant
MFMA Grant
Beach Access Upgrade
IDP
Development Planning and Shared Services
Small Town Rehabilitation
Sports and Recreation
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Figures in Rand                  2013        2012

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

9. Unspent Conditional Grants (continued)

10. Trade and Other Payables

11. Property Rates

Rates Received

Movement during the year

Other creditors balance is made out of :

Valuations

Balance at the beginning
Additions during the year
Income recognition during the year

Residential
Commercial
State
Municipal (Ngonyama Trust)
Agriculture
Public Benefit Organisation
Public Service Infrastructure

Property Rates Levied
Less: Income Forgone

Trade Payables

Other Creditors

The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the annual financial statements and an indication of other forms of government 
assistance from which the municipality has directly benefited, unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government 
assistance that has been recognized.

See note 15 for reconciliation of grants form National / Provincial Government.

2 088 091
65 191 317

(56 054 728)
11 224 680

9 117 458

6 561 455
15 678 916

5 229 884
-

5 229 884

193 868 000
95 165 000

141 833 000
42 250 000

588 256 000
122 209 000

7 213 000
1 190 794 000

463 543
5 920 000

177 912
6 561 455

4 735 482
20 965 000

(23 612 391)
2 088 091

9 405 802

14 095 525
23 501 329

8 594 277
(3 529 458)

5 064 819

22 885 000
937 600

75 877 575
38 604 000

136 436 000
-
-

274 740 175

8 080 001
5 920 000

95 524
14 095 525
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Figures in Rand                  2013        2012

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

12. Government Grants and Subsidies

MIG Grant

FMG Grant

MAP - Admin Capacity

MAP - Saligina Crescent

Housing Grant

Equitable Share
MFMA
MSIG
MIG
FMG Grant
Library Grant
MAP Grant
Beach Access Upgrade Grant
IDP Grant
Small Town Rehabilitation

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 9)

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 9)

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 9)

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 9)

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current - year receipts

42 310 000
-

800 000
9 398 870
1 534 873

177 000
1 646 829

86 275
70 883
30 000

56 054 730

372 594
17 558 000
(9 398 870)

8 531 724

34 873
1 500 000

(1 534 873)
-

804 149
-

(804 149)
-

842 680
-

(842 680)
-

33 795
-

37 880 000
1 415 127

790 000
15 236 199

-
168 573

4 384 683
-
-
-

59 874 582

1 133 993
14 475 000

(15 236 399)
372 594

-
1 450 000

(1 415 127)
34 873

54 149
750 000

-
804 149

1 727 363
3 500 000

(4 384 683)
842 680

1 819 977
(1 786 182)

103

ANNUAL	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	30	JUNE	2013



Figures in Rand                  2013        2012
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12. Government Grants and Subsidies (continued)

MSIG Grant

Beach Access Upgrade

IDP Grant

Library Grant

Small Town Rehabilitation Grant

Development Planning and Shared Services

Sports and Recreation Grant

Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Current - year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Current - year receipts

Current - year receipts

800 000
(800 000)

-

1 000 000
(86 275)
913 725

200 000
(70 883)
129 117

177 000
(177 000)

-

600 000
(30 000)
570 000

371 319

675 000

750 000
(750 000)

-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-

-
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13. General Expenses

Audi Committee
Advertising 
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Cleaning 
Poverty alleviation
Internal audit
Professional fees
Stores and material
Publicity 
Mayoral cup 
Entertainment & receptions
Zulu dance 
Mayoral project
Purchase of  books
Insurance 
Community development and training
Conferences and seminars
Street lighting
Legal fees 
Rent - Vehicles
Rent - copier 
Traffic Management Fees
Medical examinations
Fuel and oil 
Small tools 
Postal services
Printing and Stationery
Protective clothing
Licenses 
Refreshments - Council
Refreshments   
Levies & membership fees
Telephone 
Training 
Subsistence and travelling
Youth skills 
Land Usage Management System
Electricity and water services
Sanitaton 
Uniforms and protective clothing
Archiving 
Bursaries 
Community busaries
Disaster fund
HIV awareness campaign
IDP operating projects
LED 
Grants & donations
Sundries 
KwaNologa games

40 924
387 371

1 289 082
86 733
81 218

345 816
892 861

2 902 520
_ 

44 300
_

204 964
_

1 375 266
20 216

264 169
311 980
23 538

328 884
46 688

364 863
496 293
173 256

3 342
773 990

16 124
17 578

951 955
_

13 674
292 643
160 737
409 667
965 399
788 145
908 271

_
602 591

1 145 054
404 142
191 635
127 085
191 051
797 882
978 953
111 715

30 750
492 765
161 100

5 657
_

20 222 847

38 628
251 258

1 566 910
108 769
413 893
571 061
774 494

3 828 894
32 762

107 350
150 620
180 334
110 440
548 735

15 362
255  687

_
181 612
527 029

89 227
612 498
267 419
639 395

6 368
596 484

51 778
15 395

512 905
21 363

4 023
218 083
123 580
127 602
882 803
139 196

1 117 768
27 000

_
1 588 523

237 767
31 528
23 780

531 978
202 763
811 489

41 655
190 534
141 220
165 915

17 393
352 241

19 453 511
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14. Employee Related Costs

Remuneration of Municipal Manager

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer

Remuneration of Corporate Services Director

Remuneration of Technical Services Director

PAYE, UIF & SDL

Basic 
Bonus 
Medical aid - company contributions
SDL 
Other payroll  levies
Leave pay provison charge
Relief and overtime payments
Night allowances
Travell allowance
Housing benefits and allowances
Funeral scheme
Group life insurance
Unemployment insurance
Bargaining council

Annual Remuneration
Car Allowance
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Acting Allowance

Annual Remuneration  
Car Allowance  
Contributinons to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

Annual Remuneration
Car Allowance
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

Annual Remuneration  
Car Allowance  
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

Opening balance

11 219 603
679 122
821 009
200 617

1 584 672
198 537
732 782
100 602

1 427 360
42 696

122 672
278 922

96 831
5 468

17 510 893

118 750
39 583

1 822 
197 553
357 708

569 574
142 393

7 481
719 449

569 574
142 393

7 923
719 890

569 574
142 393

7 414
719 381

6 524 248

10 634 951
589 541
703 909
185 977

1 191 209
34 773

733 044
104 828

1 605 192
40 240
59 917

213 781
82 673

3 604
16 183 639

676 475
289 918

1 497
_

967 890

574 514
143 628

1 497
719 639

574 514
143 628

1 497
719 639

574 514
143 628

1 497
719 639

7 414 710
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14. Employee Related Costs (continued)

15. Remuneration of Councillors

17. Auditor’s Remuneration

18. Contracted Services

16. Finance Costs

Pension and Medical Aid

Council subscripions  
Amount paid - current 
Amount paid - previous years

Balance unpaid (included in payables)

Executive Mayor
Cellphone Allowances
Councillors Allowances
Travel Allowances

Opening for previous year
Current year Audit Fees
Current year fees paid

Balance unpaid (included in payables)

Specialist Services
Other Contractors

Other interest paid

Opening balance 
Council subscriptions 
Amount paid - current 
Amount paid - previous years

Balance unpaid (included in payables)

3 753 522
(3 289 979)

(6 524  248)

463 543

249 340
370 157

4 256 185
1 517 675
6 393 357

44 141
1 262 085

(1 166 626)

139 600

348 779
511 579
860 358

65 967

502 393
3 932 061

(3 594 282)
(502 393)

337 779

3 655 293
_

(4 545 755)

6 524 248

213 832
319 086

4 334 761
1 192 632
6 060 311

248
1 610 803

(1 566 910)

44 141

_
545 234
545 234

495 381

132 110
2 090 327

(1 720 044)
_

502 393
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19. Cash Generated from Operations

20. Commitments

21. Contingencies

22. Change in Accounting Estimates (2012)

Surplus  
Adjustments for : 
Depreciatioln and amortisation
Debt imparment / (Reversal )
Movements in provisons 
Other non- cash items 
Changes in working capital :
Trade and other receivables form Non- Exchange Transactions
Other receivables 
Movements in the provision
Trade and other payables 
VAT  
Unspent conditional grants

Commitments in respect of Capital Expenditure

Already contracted for and Approved
• Community
• Other
• Infrastructure

Approved but not yet contracted for
• Infrastructure

Litigation Details
Nhlangothi Construction

11 659 176

3 412 897
(1 036 122)

198 537
_

(2 114 046)
541 691

1 031 636
(7 104 774)

(152 508)
3 748 918

10 185 405

15 270 301
_

3 728 927
18 999 228

20 645 000

-
-

3 568 413

15 976 813
2 038 474

_
(1 968 730)

727 864
(1 187 364)
(2 038 474)

1 115 186
180 013

(861 209)
17 550 986

2 845 933
954 768
430 717

4 231 418

17 558 000

50 000
75 000

During 2012 financila year management reviewed the conditons of all assets. During the review process useful lives of assets were  
reviewed from prior year. The revision of estimated useful life resulted in an increase in prior year charge of depreciaton by of R13,879,400. 
The breakdow per asset class below;

Buildings
Infrastructure
Community Assets
Other PPE
Total

1 589 252
2 607 355
2 388 720
3 426 522

10 011 849

Opening
Acc Dep

Closing
Acc Dep

Effects of Review 
of estimated

2 730 073
6 785 832

10 552 353
3 822 991

23 891 249

1 140 821
4 178 477
8 163 633

396 469
13 879 400
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23. Correction of an error (2013)

24. Going Concern

25. Irregular Expenditure

26. Unauthorised Expenditure

26.1. Unspent Housing Grant

Cash Flow Statements

Impact of Change on Accumulated Surplus

During 2013 financial year an adjustment of R 1 968 730 was made to the Accumulated Surplus. The amount of R182 547 relates to the 
stale and cancelled sheques that were not presented of paynent in the previous financila year. The amount of R1 786 182 relates to the 
restatement of the unspent Housing Grant that was incorreclty disclosed in the prior year.The following balances has been restated as 
follows:

Management acknowledges the unfavourable financial health of the Municipality, as current liabilities were higher than curent assets 
characterised by Payables. This was mainly due to high payables and unspent conditional grants that were not cashed back. Despite this 
the municipality  will continue to operate as going will continue to operate as going concent as going concern as there are guaranteed 
equitable share allocations that injecting cash on continious  basis.

Opening Balance 
Current year  
Conditional grants not cash backed
Conddoned or written off by Council
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement

Opening Balance 
Current year  
Unauthorised expenditure awaiting condonement

Balance previoulsly reported  
Adjustment    
Adjusted Balance     
The balance was restated due to housing grant confirmation received from the Department.

Cash Flow and Other Cash Equivalents  
Balance previoulsly reported
Restatement
Restated Balance

Bank
Housing Grant
Restated Balance

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

13 709 049
12 987 709

-
-

26 696 758

2 088 091
9 136 589

11 224 280

1 819 977
(1 786 182)

33 795

17 573
182 547
200 120

182 547
1 786 183

(1 968 730)

4 735 482
9 834 776
3 874 273

(4 735 482)
13 709 049

-
2 088 091
2 088 091
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27. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

28. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2013

Opening Balance
Current year 
Interests and Penalties - SARS
Condoned or written off by Council
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement

Leave Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2012

873 107
7 400

171 567
-

1 052 074

1 890 885
-

873 107
(1 890 885)

873 107

Figures in Rand                  2013        2012

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

683 792

649 019

Opening
Balance

Opening
Balance

Additions

Additions

Total

Total

198 537

34 773

882 329

683 792Leave Provisions

The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate of the municipality’s liability under one period warranties granted on 
(electrical ) ( products ), based on ( prior experience) ( and ) ( industry averages for defecive products).
                
There is no expected reimbursement  (from the manufacturer) in respect of this provision.       
   
The restructurig provison relates to redundancy costs incurred on the disposal of. At, approximately - % of the staff had been retrenched. 
The remainder departed in.    
                
The municipality moved from its previous leased premises. The lease in non-cancellable and the lease continue for the next years. The 
municipality cannot find a lessee to occupy the premises.
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Tel:   +27 (0) 35 580 4963
Fax:  +27 (0) 35 580 1141

PO Box 96, Kwambonambi, 3915
25 Bredelia Street, Kwambonambi, 3915

www.mbonambi.org.za
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